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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B 5

2009 2008
—BEAF —EEN\F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEBET BEBEER
Segment revenue of continuing operations BEKEEKE I BERR
Food and beverages B
Hong Kong BB 285 265
Singapore N 17 25
Mainland China A B A 9 9
311 299
Investments in securities — Hong Kong BHIRE-AB 7 12
Total B 318 311
Segment performance of continuing operations BFEKEXBIERR
Food and beverages ER
Segment results before impairment & REBERZ
loss on goodwill DIEELE (23) 9
Impairment loss on goodwill BB REEE (119) -
Share of results of associates PG EE & R R R AE 11 10
(Loss)/profit (B8, a7 (131) 19
Investments in securities BHRE (25) 4
Total W (156) 23
2009 2008

Segment revenue of continuing operations by geographical areas

FRREERRMED B

2009

Segment performance of continuing operations by entities*

RS Rt E ) Bl

2008

Segment performance of continuing operations by entities

Segment revenue of continuing operations by geographical areas

FECEEBROEI|RR FEREEBREEDBRR
(25) 4
M Hong Kong & Subsidiaries /& A A)

Investments in securities Food and beverages

W Singapore TN [ Associates Hi & A A

M Mainland China /B Ath

HERE 'R

* excluding impairment loss on goodwill &1 7 2 2 il B &5 18

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, share capital THARERRMEBEE —_SETZNF=A=1+—

and results of the Group as of and for the five years ended 31st March 2009. HIFBERFRAZREE  LBE RAEE
R -
Financials (HK$ Million) BKER (B¥BEET) 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Total assets BmEE 460 631 749 717 626
Total liabilities watE 82 220 268 124 221
Minority interests LHRRER 0.18 0.18 0.20 - -
Equity attributable to equity holders RABRERAE A
of the Company B 378 411 481 593 405
Share capital [N
— in number (Million) —HEB(BER) 171 171 190 216 216
— in value (HK$0.50 per share) —gE(ERE®EST) 86 86 95 108 108
Revenue Wz 585 734 752 347% 318
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity ANERERFE A
holders of the Company RS R, (E8) 2 37 34 26 (159)
Per Share Basis BRHE
Earnings/(loss) (HK cents) B, (EE) (B 1.0 22 19 12 (74)
Dividends (HK cents) A B (B 2.0 8.0 7.0 10 2.0
Net asset value (at book value) (HK$) BEFEGRERE®E)ET) 2.21 2.40 2.53 2.75 1.88
Revenue Y3 Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
(HK$ Million % & 77 AARIRESE ABLER
(HK$ Million S¥ B 8 7T)
05 05
06 06
07 07
08 * 08
09 IETE ] 405
Dividends per share 8 i 5. Net asset value per share (at book value)
(HK cents 1) SREEFE(RIEEE)
(HKS$ /7T)
05 05
06 06
07 07
08 08
09 m 09 1.88
*  Revenue for the year ended 31st March 2008 decreased * HECTZENF AT —HBULEFERETEKTD
since the Group disposed of its Computer and HARAREERFEAN L E B R EBAMRHRERS -

Information Communication Technology business

during the year.
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BUSINESS AT A GLANCE
£

Store Locator
70546

Hong Kong Island Kowloon New Territories Beijing
BEEE hEE FRE Al
625 King’s Road Lee Gardens 2 China Hong Kong City East Point City Chang An Building
2B 6255 FE=H B R R2ARE
8 Wyndham Street Lee Gardens EMax Hong Kong Gold Coast China World Trade
e RN I NEEREZ DR L EEELEE Exhibition Hall
HEREE
Allied Kajima Building Lee Theatre Plaza Festival Walk Metro City Plaza IT
BABBAE FI 5 5 X4 740 70 0 = 29
Bank of China Tower Lippo Centre Grand Century Place New Town Plaza
RIRKE NEH DL L ES ¥R B S
I
British Council Lyndhurst Terrace Harbour City Shanghai
HE & o /e M3 & o
HEX 1Bith BB -
Cheung Kong Centre Manulife Tower HKU SPACE Kowloon
ESTH D SR B 0 East Campus New World Tower
EEARHLEESRE  Lantau Island i
Citibank Plaza One Island East NERDEK U |1y
TR IT S BEEDL
Hong Kong Baptist .
Cityplaza One Pak Fook Building University AS{arld—Ego
K&t — R B EHZT@AS 25 B BR 1 5
Dorset House Repulse Bay HSBC Centre Citg?e Singapore
SHAR Bk 8 RER 5
East Town Building Sanlitun IAnrio Cer\ltre %5;0:’;% gﬁay Ferry Pier T —
AR EEES 815 RBHER e
E?ter/taiinment Building St. John’s Building I\E/'Ianhattan Mid-Town %s;o:;eg f;y Plaza Changi Airport Transit
e BOBAE 2 EEL REES B
Fortis Bank Tower Stanley Millennium City 6 Hong Kong International
ELEBAE e 8422 5 <59 Airport Aisle B feddot
EERBERSER .
Vivo City
Fortis Centre Tai Yau Plaza Miramar Shopping Centre
=@ KBS EEERIS Hong Kong International
Airport Aisle J
Grand Millennium Plaza The Center New World Centre BRERMBILR
SRS GEL it R :
Hong Kong International
Great Eagle Centre The Peak Tower One Peking Road Ai‘ipo Calie 288 .
& by EE JbEE— e 7 78 BIFR #4435 28 5% &
H Vall P : : Mui Wo Pier
appy Valley The University of Hong Queen Elizabeth Hospital =
0553 Kong, Global Lounge FFA 1A% B ERE
BEBRBEBERRH L
Hennessy Road Skyline Tower
SEFFE Vicwood Plaza BRES
S
Hollywood Road Telford Plaza
wEBEE Wellington Street =R s
BB IE
Hutchison House Whampoa Garden
MERE Windsor House =
SEERE
IFC Mall Wing Hong Street
BRSSO ES KEEH

Stores as of 15th July 2009
RIZTAFLATREBRZHE

H1)Z B
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—

BRAR
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Specialty restaurants and bars

8 RE Tk T IE
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Outlets as of 15th July 2009
KRBT AFEATHBAZER
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
B
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Fiscal year 2008/09 was a challenging year for many industries given the
recession and overall global economic environment. Competition in the
food & beverages (“F&B”) industry has become more intense due to its
sensitivity to changes in spending sentiment. Nevertheless, we also have
many accomplishments to recognise during our review of the year.

During the year the Group completed its tranche II acquisition of
the remaining 51% equity shares of Igor’s Group, which operates 30
restaurants and bars. This increased our number of wholly owned outlets
in Hong Kong close to 100 and will double the scale of our F&B segment in
terms of revenue for the coming year.

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Following the severe and rapid market deterioration during the second
half of the financial year, which was detrimental to the Group’s F&B and
securities investment segments, results for the year under review were
below expectations. Revenue for the continuing operations increased
slightly by 2.3% to HK$318 million, but a loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$159 million was also recorded, with HK$134
million of that arising from impairment on goodwill for purchases of
two F&B businesses and on fixed assets. Loss of HK$25.3 million was also
recognised on its investment in securities segment.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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However, operating cash flow remained positive, amounting to HK$31.5
million for the year (2008: HK$93.3 million), as the impairments on
intangible and tangible assets were non-cash in nature. Also, Pacific
Coffee’s same-store sales were only marginally off-pace, underscoring how
embedded coffee drinking has become in the local culture.

Meanwhile, the satisfactory performance of Igor’s Group restaurants
demonstrates the importance of a diversified portfolio of dining
experiences in prime locations. Cash on hand at year-end was HK$174
million (2008: HK$200 million) — even after the payment of the
final consideration for Igor’s Group of HK$95.0 million shortly after
year-end — the Group should be able to enjoy continued sufficient
liquidity to fund its normal operations, which are showing real long-term
potential despite the current market conditions.

As a result, and after careful consideration of anticipated funding
requirements for operations and investments, the Board has decided to
declare a final dividend per share of HK1.0 cent (2008: HK7.0 cents).
Together with the interim dividend of HK1.0 cent (2008: HK3.0 cents), the
total dividend of HK2.0 cents despite the loss per share of HK73.66 cents
represents the Group’s efforts to reward and provide recurrent returns to
its shareholders.

STRATEGY AND OUTLOOK

Despite some recent signs of a return to economic growth after a year of
contraction, the Group remains cautious about the extent to which this
signals a recovery.

During the period under review, landlords of core districts properties were
reluctant to renegotiate and reduce rents notwithstanding the economic
crisis. As such, while we continue to look for sound organic and M&A
growth opportunities for the F&B business, the Group will adopt a more
cautious approach in expansion for the coming year. Also, given the solid
performance to date and long-term potential of our F&B business, the
Group has prudently and strategically decided to retain the liquid capital
from the realisation of our investment portfolio during the year to fuel
the future growth of this segment rather than reinvesting in the financial
market.

The Pacific Coffee brand continues to convey a high-quality, pleasurable
lifestyle experience with unique customer appeal. In the year under review,
Pacific Coffee Hong Kong has received top honors at the “U Favorite Food
Awards 2009” — organised by the widely read U Magazine — in the “Café”
category for our commitment to excellence, quality and customer value.
The brand also took home the “Coffeehouse” category award at the “My
Favorite Restaurant Awards 2009” by OpenRice.com, the widely read F&B
portal, forum and search engine in Hong Kong. We will open new stores
promoting this image in carefully selected locations. In fact, two new
outlets will commence business in the second quarter of 2009/10, at Nina
Tower, Tsuen Wan, and Manhattan Hill, Lai Chi Kwok.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
B R
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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The Group remains optimistic in the long-term about Pacific Coffee’s
prospects in Hong Kong. Pacific Coffee has delivered a relatively stable
performance despite the current difficult economic situation. Also, there
are signs such as low interest rates and banks becoming keen to compete in
mortgage lending that point to a more favourable economic environment
in Hong Kong. We also believe that the negative impact of Swine Flu on the
number of inbound tourists is only temporary. The HKSAR government
has also announced various policies intended to stabilise the economy.
These are all positive indicators that should pave the way for an eventual
economic recovery and for an increase in consumer confidence and
spending. With the emergence of coffee drinking as an everyday lifestyle
choice in Hong Kong, we are confident that customers will be even more
inclined to seek the space and quiet enjoyment of “The Perfect Cup” of
coffee as well as the relaxing experience that Pacific Coffee offers as the
€CoNnomy recovers.

However, learning from our experience developing overseas markets, and
with economic uncertainties prevailing, the Group has taken the necessary
steps to scale down these operations while minimising costs. In tandem, the
Group will leverage Pacific Coffee’s strong reputation and brand awareness
for growth by carefully developing an international franchise business.
Experienced and resourceful local franchisees will enable Pacific Coffee to
open new stores in overseas markets in a less management- and capital-
intensive manner, at the same time providing stable revenue streams with
less risk.

Tapping into the rising living standards of the Pearl River Delta, which
have led to greater demand for high-quality coffee, the Group entered
into an agreement with a franchisee in October 2008, granting it exclusive
territorial rights to set up and operate coffee stores, kiosks and vending
machines under the “Pacific Coffee” name in Macau, Zhuhai and
Guangzhou. Pacific Coffee will continue to select suitable partners to
explore high-growth markets in other Asia Pacific regions.

Another major focus of the Group in the coming year will be the smooth
and successful integration of Igor’s Group. Prior to the completion of the
acquisition of the remaining 51% interest in Igor’s Group, the management
teams of both Igor’s Group and Pacific Coffee were long working closely
together, but that cooperation has now become more intense and
orchestrated. While both teams can leverage each other’s relationships and
experience with corporate and street-level landlords, more collaboration
in food development, advertising strategies and budgets, as well as
centralised procurement and logistics will help maximise the synergies of
our combined F&B portfolio.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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The Group will also cautiously expand the Igor’s network, strengthening
its presence in Central and Western Kowloon by opening four more outlets
across a diversified range of brands in the coming years. In addition, three
specialty kiosks will be opened at Central Pier 7. Together with the alfresco
Pier 7 Café and Bar and the elegant dining venue Watermark, with its
270°-waterfront-view, Igor’s Group will gain an even stronger presence
and foothold in that district. Igor’s has the distinct advantage of featuring a
wide variety of high-quality dining experiences that suit a variety of tastes,
budgets and stylistic preferences, all strategically located in prime areas.
The Group intends to leverage this for future growth.

As mentioned before, the future of the macroeconomic environment is
still a matter of debate. However, the chance of a quick rebound seems
somewhat unrealistic. Nevertheless, the Group is cautiously confident
that market conditions and consumer spending sentiment could gradually
improve.

We believe that our variety of restaurants, bars and branded coffee houses
will continue to be rated favorably by consumers on the critical attributes of
quality, variety, service, consistency, location and overall value. And while
the business environment is likely to remain tough in the coming fiscal
year, we will continue to deliver high levels of service and hospitality to our
guests.

I am confident that with the competitive edge honed by the integration
between Pacific Coffee and Igor’s Group, we will be able to emerge
from this challenging time in a good position to prosper when healthier
economic times return.

In closing, on behalf of the Board, I would like to thank the management
and staff for their hard work and professionalism during this very
challenging year and express my gratitude to you for your ongoing support.

Chow Yei Ching
Chairman
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CEVRE V&R

REPORTABLE OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group has two reportable operating segments: F&B and investment in
securities. The F&B segment runs Pacific Coffee-branded coffeechouses and
an array of restaurants and bars in the portfolio of Igor’s Group, while the
investment segment invests mainly in listed and unlisted equity and debt
securities as well as fixed income and structured deposits.

The Group successfully completed its second tranche acquisition of the
remaining 51% interest of Igor’s Group during the year, and Sinochina
Enterprises Limited (“SEL”), the holding company of Igor’s Group, has
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group as of the end of March
2009. For accounting purposes, the balance sheet of SEL as of 31st March
2009 has been consolidated into that of the Group. Profit contribution
from Igor’s Group for fiscal year 2009 is shown as a share of results of
associates in the consolidated income statement of the Group. Beginning
Ist April 2009, the income statement of Igor’s Group will be consolidated
into that of the Group.

FOOD AND BEVERAGES

Overall Performance

Pacific Coffee operates 81 coffeehouses as of 31st March 2009 (2008: 77),
of which 70 stores are in Hong Kong (2008: 63), 6 are in Singapore (2008:
7) and 5 are in mainland China (2008: 7). These stores are all managed and
operated by the Group’s internal teams and are located in core commercial
districts, prime shopping and residential areas, as well as tourist and
transport spots in their respective cities.

Igor’s Group operates 30 outlets as of 31st March 2009 (2008: 29), all of
which are located in Hong Kong. There are 10 restaurants, 12 restaurant-
bars, and 8 ‘Wildfire’ chain stores (2008: 11, 10 and 8 respectively), mainly
located in Central, Wanchai, Stanley, Discovery Bay and certain prime
shopping malls. Igor’s Group also engages in the food trading business
under the brand name “Blu Trading” and operates a central kitchen called
“Blu Catering”.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AN ANALYSIS

The F&B segment generated HK$311 million revenue this fiscal year,
up 4.0% from last year. In view of the severely deteriorated market
conditions and lack of evidence that there will be strong improvement
in fundamental economic factors, the management has reviewed the
carrying values of the intangible and tangible assets of Pacific Coffee and
Igor’s Group and has prudently made a HK$119 million impairment in
goodwill (2008: Nil) and a HK$15.5 million impairment in property,
plant and equipment (2008: HK$3.4 million) to the consolidated income
statement for the year under review. Such significant impairments
were non-cash in nature and did not affect the operating cash flow of
the Group. After sharing the results of its associates, segment loss for
this financial year is HK$131 million (2008: HK$19.0 million profit).

Cash flow from operations was HK$31.5 million, down HK$61.8 million
from last year. Capital expenditures amounted to HK$193 million, HK$156
million higher than last year, and this was mainly attributable to the step-up
acquisition of an associate which caused property, plant and equipment to
increase by HK$48.3 million, prepaid lease payment to increase by HK$1.6
million and goodwill and trademarks to increase by HK$129 million.

Pacific Coffee Hong Kong Operations

The general market consensus is that the economic recovery will be gradual.
To demonstrate long-term confidence in Pacific Coffee, we increased
the number of outlets year-on-year from 63 to 70, while total revenue
amounted to HK$285 million, up 7.8% or HK$20.6 million from last year.
Despite the worsening overall market situation during the year, overall
same-store revenue dropped marginally by 2.5%. Further analysis revealed
that business district same-store revenue declined by approximately 3.1%,
whilst retail and shopping areas same-store revenue shrank slightly by
1.8%.

Pacific Coffee has been vigorous in its efforts to generate revenue and raise
brand recognition, introducing a variety of savory, dessert, hot food and
seasonal items during the year to provide customers with even greater
choice. Pacific Coffee also organised a number of promotional activities
with several business partners, including Harbour City, HMV and Manulife
to just name a few, and credit card-issuing companies to increase brand
awareness and boost revenue. To further promote our lifestyle leisure
brand and raise its profile among the mass public, Pacific Coffee sponsored
a 240-episode evening prime time programme, ‘Off Pedder’, which started
broadcasting on Television Broadcasts Limited (TVB) in October 2008.

To continuously improve profitability, various cost reduction measures
were implemented during the year, for example redesigning packaging
materials and having solicited a wider range of supplies without
compromising quality or consumer value. Internal operation process flows
were closely scrutinised to rationalise the size of back-end staff. The Group
also fought very hard to negotiate rents & terms for new and renewed leases,
including paying contingent rent if possible to reduce commitment in fixed
costs. Capital expenditures were also tightly controlled and monitored.
Another major step was to partner with large corporations to open shops or
kiosks at their premises and serve their staff and customers.
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To diversify income and speed up international expansion on a business
risk-sharing model, Pacific Coffee has also embarked upon a new business
strategy, granting international franchises to carefully selected partners.
The Group entered into a 10-year franchise agreement with Future Bright
Holdings Limited in October 2008, granting them territorial rights to
open franchised stores in Macau SAR, Zhuhai city and Guangzhou city
in mainland China for a total consideration of HK$10.0 million plus
royalties on ongoing annual revenue. The first franchised store is expected
to commence business in Macau in July 2009. The Group expects to
continue cautiously developing its franchise business in other Mainland
and Southeast Asian cities as additional stable revenue streams.

Pacific Coffee Overseas Operations

Revenue from the Singapore, Beijing and Shanghai operations for the year
under review was HK$25.6 million (2008: HK$33.0 million), a decline of
22.4%. The overseas operations could not provide profit contributions.

Facing difficult market situations and uncertainties, Pacific Coffee is
revamping its strategies for overseas markets. After considering the surplus
of competition in Singapore and lack of economies of scale in mainland
China—and to divert scarce management resources to the more profitable
Hong Kong market—the Group has decided to reduce the total number of
overseas stores from 11 as of 31st March 2009 to 5 in fiscal year 2010.

Management for overseas operations will assist the head office in
developing international franchises while ensuring smooth and orderly
downsizing for overseas operations.

Igor’s Group

The Group acquired the remaining 51% equity interest of Igor’s Group on
31st March 2009 for a consideration of HK$135 million. The total price for
acquiring the entire Igor’s Group amounted to HK$199 million. While the
balance sheet for Igor’s Group as of 31st March 2009 has been consolidated
into that of the Group, profit contribution from Igor’s Group for the year
under review is shown in the consolidated income statement of the Group
as share of results of associates, which represents 49% of Igor’s Group profit
for the year and a 16.7% increase from HK$9.6 million last year to HK$11.2
million this year.

In order to attract traffic and raise customer spending, Igor’s Group altered
or refreshed the concepts of certain outlets: “Café de Paris” at Discovery
Bay has been changed to “Moorings”, offering authentic nautical décor and
a resort atmosphere; “Wildfire” Stanley has been renovated into a Greek
Doric-style family destination and weekend dining stop; “Marlin” in Lan
Kwai Fong has been revamped into a chic, designer open-space Martini bar;
and the Spanish “La Bodega” underwent a stylish refurbishment to enhance
its standing as a great place to relax and unwind with friends.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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While maintaining its strong presence and reputation in Lan Kwai Fong,
Central, Soho, Wanchai, Stanley and Discovery Bay, Igor’s Group has also
targeted spenders at high-end shopping arcades. “Wildfire” opened in the
World Trade Centre at Causeway Bay in December 2008. Together with
“Wildfire” and “Stormies” at Elements, which opened last year, these new
locations represent attempts to appeal to local and overseas shoppers.
“Watermark” on the Central harbourfront also proved to be very popular
for elegant dining and the perfect venue for private wedding banquets and
corporate functions.

It is planned that during the coming year, Igor’s Group will open four more
restaurants and bars in Central and Kowloon, and three specialty kiosks at
Pier 7 Central.

INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES

As stated in our previous announcement, the Board believes that the
investment policy adopted by the Company has been conservative and
reiterates that the Group holds a balanced investment portfolio comprising
equity, fixed income and structured deposits. In the beginning of fiscal year
2009, the Group has already taken proactive measures to gradually reduce
and rebalance the portfolio so as to lower equity holdings in exchange for
conservative debt securities and minimise exposure. As of year end, the
Group has substantially reduced its portfolio size in view of the global
economic recession and unprecedented financial volatility.

The segment reported a HK$14.5 million unaudited segment loss in the
fiscal year 2008/09 interim report. As the impact of market deterioration
continued, the segment made a further HK$10.8 million loss in the second
half of this fiscal year. The total HK$25.3 million loss included HK$6.5
million interest income, HK$22.0 million realised loss and HK$9.9 million
unrealised holding loss from fair value revaluation. As of 31st March
2009, the fair value of total investment in securities and available-for-sale
investments amounted to HK$30.0 million, and the investment on hand
consisted mainly of private equities and investment-grade bonds. There
was no holding of listed equity in the portfolio. It is envisaged that, barring
unforeseen circumstances, further risk of impairment or realisation loss on
the investment portfolio on hand should not be material.
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Dr CHOW Yei Ching

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
BAHEXE

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang

AXREEL BEELE

Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Executive Director, Chairman, aged 73, is the
founder of Chevalier Group since 1970. He is the Chairman of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited(“CIHL”), a public company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited and Towngas China
Company Limited and a Non-Executive Director of Television Broadcasts
Limited. In 1995, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree of
Doctor of Business Administration by The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and an Honorary University Fellow by The University of Hong
Kong. In 1996 and 1997, he was appointed as an Honorary Member of the
Board of Directors by Nanjing University and was conferred an Honorary
Degree of Doctor of Laws by The University of Hong Kong respectively. Dr
Chow also serves actively in a number of educational advisory committees
and gives substantial support to the aforementioned two Universities in
Hong Kong and The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology in
areas of researches and developments. He is also a Consultative Professor of
Zhejiang University and a Lecture Professor of Sichuan Union University
in the PRC. In 2008, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree of
Doctor of Social Science by City University of Hong Kong. Dr Chow’s
enthusiasm in public services is evidenced in his appointment in 2001
as the Vice Patron of The Community Chest in Hong Kong. He was also
appointed as the Honorary Consul of The Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong
Kong in 2001. He also actively participates in various professional bodies
and associations on fraternal and Chinese affairs. To name a few, he is the
Founding President of International Ningbo Merchants Association Co
Ltd, the President of The Japan Society of Hong Kong and the Permanent
Honorary President of the National Taiwan University-HK Alumni
Association, etc. In recognition of his contributions to local and overseas
societies alike, Dr Chow was awarded honorable decorations from Britain,
Belgium, France and Japan and especially the Order of the Rising Sun, Gold
Rays with Neck Ribbon in Japan in 2008. Furthermore, Dr Chow was also
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star from the Government of the HKSAR in
2004. He is the father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow,
Managing Director and Executive Director respectively of the Company.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009

Miss Lily CHOW
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Mr HO Sai Hou Mr Shinichi YONEHARA Mr WU King Cheong Mr LEUNG Kwong Kin Mr LAU Kai Shu, Frank
At REE KEE-%4E HRELE RAEBEE BIBEEE

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar, Executive Director, Managing Director,
aged 35, joined Chevalier Group in 2000 and is an Executive Director of
CIHL, a public company listed on the Stock Exchange and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is also a director of certain companies
of the Group. Mr Chow holds a degree in Master of Engineering from the
University of Oxford, U.K. He is currently a General Committee Member
and Chairman of the Environment Committee of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce, a General Committee Member of the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and the Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies. He is also a Committee Member of the Infrastructure
Development Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council (“HKTDC”). Mr Chow is a member of the Committee Member
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”),
Shanghai. He is the son of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman of the
Company and the Chairman of CIHL and is also a brother of Ms Lily Chow,
an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang, Executive Director, aged 59, joined Chevalier Group
in 1972 and is the Vice Chairman and Managing Director of CIHL, a public
company listed on the Stock Exchange and a substantial shareholder of
the Company. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group.
He is the President of The Lift and Escalator Contractors Association in
Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman of the Hong Kong — China Branch of The
International Association of Elevator Engineers, Vice President of the Hong
Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors Limited and
a Registered Lift and Escalator Engineer in Hong Kong. He is a member
of the Guangzhou Committee of the CPPCC. Mr Kuok has extensive
experience in business development and is responsible for the strategic
planning and management of the operations of lifts and escalators, building
construction, building materials and supplies, aluminium works, electrical
and mechanical services, civil engineering, property development as well as
investment projects of the Chevalier Group.
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Miss Lily CHOW, Executive Director, aged 46, joined Chevalier Group in
1990. She is responsible for strategic planning and business development of
the Group. She is a member of Shanghai Women’s Federation Committee.
She holds a Bachelor Degree and is the daughter of Dr Chow Yei Ching,
the Chairman of the Company and is also a sister of Mr Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar, Managing Director of the Company.

Mr CHANG Wan Lung, Robert, Executive Director, aged 45, joined
Chevalier Group in 2005 as General Manager of Business Development. He
holds a Bachelor degree of Science from the University of San Francisco.
Mr Chang was with the HKTDC for more than 17 years, of which he held
management positions of increased responsibility, culminating as Senior
Product Promotions Manager. He also served as Director of Northern
China between 1999 & 2002 during his time with HKTDC.

Mr HO Sai Hou, aged 43, was appointed as an Executive Director and
Company Secretary of the Company on Ist April 2008 and is also an
Executive Director and Company Secretary of CIHL, a public company
listed on the Stock Exchange and a substantial shareholder of the Company.
He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. He joined Chevalier
Group in 2005. He is responsible for management of Chevalier Group’s
accounting and treasury, corporate finance and company secretarial
activities. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr Ho holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in
Accounting from The University of Hong Kong and completed his EMBA
with The China Europe International Business School in 2007. Previously,
Mr Ho was the Chief Financial Officer and an executive director of Van
Shung Chong Holdings Limited.

Mr Shinichi YONEHARA, aged 58, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in 2001 and a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a graduate of Keio
University, Japan. Mr Yonehara joined Mitsui & Co., Ltd in 1974 and
retired in January 2001. He was appointed General Manager for Machinery
Division of Mitsui & Company (Hong Kong) Limited from 1983 to 1992.
He is the Vice Chairman of Simon Murray & Company (Japan) and the
President of Star Flyer Inc, one of the six airline companies in Japan.
Mr Yonehara is well experienced in aircraft, telecommunications and IT
businesses.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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Mr WU King Cheong, aged 58, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in October 2002 and a member of the Audit Committee
and chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is
an Executive Director of Lee Cheong Gold Dealers Limited. He is also the
Life Honorary Chairman of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce
and Member of Hong Kong Housing Authority, as well as the Honorary
Permanent President of the Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society
and the Permanent Honorary President of the Hong Kong Stockbrokers
Association. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Yau
Lee Holdings Limited, Henderson Land Development Company Limited,
Henderson Investment Limited, Miramar Hotel and Investment Co., Ltd.
and Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited, all of which are
companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr LEUNG Kwong Kin J.P., aged 63, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company on 1st April 2008. He is
a senior practicing director of Wong Lam Leung & Kwok C.P.A. Limited.
He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of International Accountants. Mr Leung is also an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, the member of the Macau Society of Certified
Practising Accountants, the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
the Chartered Management Institute and the International Institute of
Management. Mr Leung holds a Master of Business Administration Degree
from the University of East Asia, Macau (now known as “the University
of Macau”) and is an Independent Non-Executive Director of E. Bon
Holdings Limited which is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr LAU Kai Shu, Frank, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director, member of the Audit Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 1st April 2008. He was
Director and General Manager, Alternate Chief Executive of Shanghai
Commercial Bank Limited until he retired in July 2004. He possesses
extensive knowledge and experience in the banking industry.
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MAJOR EVENTS
K o B

APRIL 2008 - MARCH 2009
B \EMAZ=BRAE=S

]uly 2008 ZFZ \Ft A

Announcement of 2008 annual results

NHF2008FEEFEE

+ Opening of Pacific Coffee shop at Queen Elizabeth
Hospital, Jordan

Apr11 2008 — = f}\ip—q H N AME R T 1A B2 B B9 Pacific Coffee 7 JE F &

Opening of Pacific Coffee shop at Wyndham
Street, Central

AL A R 2R ZE 6l AT AY Pacific Coffee 70 & 5 & August 2008 —EZFN\F/)\H

Opening of Pacific Coffee shop at Hong Kong Baptist
University, Kowloon Tong

i A LB BB R € K2/ Pacific Coffee D J&
&

September 2008 —ZEZT/)\F L A
+ Opening of Pacific Coffee shop at DBS Bank, One

Island East
LRAB B EF L E R RT1TH Pacific Coffee? Jh
&

May 2008 —ZZZ\F A A

Opening of Pacific Coffee shop at Millennium
City 6, Kwun Tong

R B IE Bl 42 2 7N BR B9 Pacific Coffee 2 &
k=

2 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009




MASOK EVENTS
K o 11

October 2008 —ZEZ )\F+ A ‘ : -+

+ Opening of Pacific Coffee shops at Fortis Centre, "
Harbour City and HSBC Centre -

MR BREP L  F B & IE L F 0 H) Pacific
Coffee 7 JEFAH

—

Opening of Pier 7 Café & Bar at Central Pier 7

{7 7 7R B2 + %% K 2 15 58 ) Pier 7 Café & Bar December 2008 —ZZEN\EF+ A
= + Announcement of 2008/09 interim results

AR 2008/09 F E H HAZE A

Opening of Wildfire restaurant at World Trade
Centre, Causeway Bay

L A 87§28 72 B AR 0 /) Wildfire 2 5 B &

March 2009 —EZHE= A

« The Group completed the acquisition of the
remaining 51% stake in Igor’s Group
SETK U EIgorsEEBRTHNED 2R+ —

+ Pacific Coffee Company sponsored TVB Jade’s &
situation comedy “Off Pedder”

Pacific Coffee C EPERERERS
Pt raticag g {1754 25 B 185 ¢ Pacific Coffee 5 5B %

+ Opening of Pacific Coffee shop at AsiaWorld-Expo

Pacific Coffee Company won the U Magazine’s

+ Pacific Coffee Company secured a franchise “U Favorite Food Awards 2009 — Café Category”

partner to operate licensed stores in Zhuhai,
Guangzhou and Macau Pacific Coffee Company 48 % U Magazine

_ SETA 54 P
Pacific Coffee Company BG4 7H AL &R - (2000 FEH#ZERRE —Cafe 5] R

¥ | N3l 1 = 438 KA

AR - BN BARRMSRT AR R JE Pacific Coffee Company won the “My Favorite
Restaurant Awards 2009 — Coffeehouse Category”
organised by OpenRice.com for the first time

Pacific Coffee Company B XL EBFBELZRE
EJEOpeance.comE’] [ 18 F 5 8R 20 JE K B 2009
—IBEER =4 | RER

HZHRRARAR]
“ETNFER 25
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Particulars of properties held by the Group are as follows: REBZWMEERDAT :
Approximate
gross Group’s
Location Usage floor area Lease term interest
R E REBE
b B A& R ZHEH e
sq. ft. %
FAIR EEES
Hong Kong
&8
Unit 6, 8/F, Block C,
Ko Fai Industrial Building,
7 Ko Fai Road,
Yau Tong,
Kowloon Central kitchen 10,000 Medium 100
LEE hREFE T
YR
S IEE 75
SETEANE
NERRCE
Flats A & B on 15/F and
Carparking Space No L4 on 1/F,
Amiata Industrial Building,
58-64 Lei Muk Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories Warehouse 7,842 Medium 100
¥ 5 R A

2
FUK I8 58-64 5%
BEXENE
I5EANBE K
1B L4EN

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT:

(Note: The below review is for continuing operations only)
Revenue and gross profit

Revenue of the Group for the year amounted to HK$318 million (2008:
HK$311 million), representing an increase of 2.3% or HK$7.0 million
as compared to last year. The improvement was mainly driven by the
continuing expansion of F&B business of HK$12.1 million. This was,
however, offset by a decrease of HK$5.9 million in interest income from
investment in securities. As a result of the increase in food costs, gross profit
margin of the Group recorded a slight decrease to 74.1% (2008: 74.6%).

Revenue of F&B business segment of approximately HK$311 million (2008:
HK$299 million) was recorded for the year under review, representing
a year-on-year increase of 4.0%. For Hong Kong Pacific Coffee, a rise
in revenue of HK$20.6 million was achieved which mainly arose from
additional revenue of HK$9.1 million of the eight new outlets introduced
during the year and from its organic revenue growth of HK$11.5 million
by other existing outlets. Revenue for Singapore Pacific Coffee outlets
decreased by HK$8.1 million, reflecting the keen competition we faced in
such overseas market.

Other expenses, net

As a result of rapid downturn in financial market, the other expenses,
net mainly included loss on investment in securities of HK$27.7 million
(2008: HK$6.1 million loss), of which a net amount of HK$22.0 million
represented realised loss (2008: HK$1.1 million realised gain) during
the year and unrealised loss of HK$5.7 million (2008: HK$7.2 million
unrealised loss) for fair value changes at year end.

Other (losses)/gains, net

Other (losses)/gains, net increased substantially amounting to HK$141
million. Due to the severely deteriorated market conditions and lack
of evidence of strong improvement in fundamental economic factors,
management has prudently reviewed the carrying values of the intangible
and tangible operating assets of Pacific Coffee and Igor’s Group and as a
result, a HK$119 million impairment on goodwill (2008: Nil) and HK$15.5
million impairment on property, plant and equipment (2008: HK$3.4
million) have been made this year. These impairments are, however, non-
cash in nature and do not have adverse bearing on the Group’s operating
cash flow.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
i 75 o]
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Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs increased from HK$213 million last year to
HK$239 million this year, an increase of 12.2% or approximately HK$26.0
million. Major items such as employment costs were increased by HK$5.5
million as a result of opening of eight news Pacific Coffee outlets in Hong
Kong where larger workforce to cope with the expansion is needed. Several
outlets which were opened last year and had full year impact in this year
also contributed to the increment. Rent also increased by HK$14.7 million
as a result of opening of new outlets and continuous upsurge in property
rental for the financial year 2008/09.

Share of results of associates

The Group recorded the share of the profit contribution from Igor’s
Group of HK$11.2 million (2008: HK$9.6 million), an increase of 16.7%
or HK$1.6 million. As at 31st March 2009, the Group acquired the
remaining 51% of the issued share capital of its associated company,
SEL, from Sinochina Pacific Limited, an independent third party. After
that acquisition, SEL became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
For accounting purposes, profit contribution from Igor’s Group for the
financial year 2008/09 is presented as share of results of associates in the
consolidated income statement of the Group. Beginning 1st April 2009, the
income statement of Igor’s Group will be consolidated into the Group’s
results for the financial year 2009/10 and onwards.

Finance income/(costs), net

Finance income decreased by HK$0.2 million, from HK$1.4 million
last year to HK$1.2 million this year, which was due to the decrease in
bank balance and decline of deposit interest rate. Finance costs, mainly
representing bank loan interest, decreased by 75.0% or HK$1.5 million
from HK$2.0 million to HK$0.5 million due to a substantial reduction
in bank borrowings by end of last financial year. The increase in bank
borrowing as at 31st March 2009 from HK$20.5 million to HK$28.3 million
was due to the acquisition of the remaining 51% of SEL as a wholly-owned
subsidiary on 31st March 2009 and thus consolidated the Igor’s Group
bank borrowings into the Group.

Income tax credit/(expenses)

Income tax credit of HK$2.6 million included current tax expenses of
HK$1.6 million (2008: HK$2.3 million) offsetting by deferred tax credit of
HK$4.2 million (2008: deferred tax charge HK$0.8 million). The decrease
in current tax was caused by the decline in the Group’s taxable profit, while
the deferred tax credit arose from reversal of temporary differences due to
fixed assets impairment as well as reduction of Hong Kong corporate profit
tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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(Loss)/earnings per share

With the major losses of impairment on goodwill and fixed assets of F&B
operations plus loss from securities investment, the Group recorded a loss
attributable to shareholder of HK$159 million. Based on the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year of 215,540,017 shares
(2008: 212,410,465 shares), the Group reported a basic loss per share of
HK?73.66 cents (2008: HK7.23 cents earnings per share) this year.

There were no dilutive potential shares and so diluted (loss)/earnings per
share equal the basic (loss)/earnings per share.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET:

The Group completed its acquisition of the remaining 51% interest of the
Igor’s Group on 31st March 2009 and as a result, SEL became a wholly-
owned subsidiary instead of a 49% associate of the Group as of 31st
March 2009. Interests in associates were thus substantially eliminated and
transferred; and the Igor’s Group’s balance sheet was consolidated into the
Group’s balance sheet as of year end.

Investment property

On completion of the acquisition of the Igor’s Group, the investment
property owned by the Group and rented to the Igor’s Group was
reclassified to property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
upon the change of purpose of use for rental income to own use by wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Major costs of addition of HK$14.1 million for the year included HK$6.5
million for the addition of new Pacific Coffee outlets in Hong Kong (8)
and Singapore (3) and the balance being mainly refurbishment for existing
outlets. Consolidation of the Igor’s Group also contributed to increase of
HK$48.3 million in costs. Costs of fixed assets HK$14.9 million written off
mainly consist of closures of total 8 outlets in Hong Kong (1), Singapore
(4) and mainland China (3) and normal wear and tear by other outlets.
Impairment loss provision of HK$15.5 million was also made for the
leasehold improvement of loss-making outlets in Hong Kong, mainland
China and Singapore.

Available-for-sale investments

The decrease in amount of available-for-sale investments resulted mainly
from the decline in fair value of venture capital fund under the financial
tsunami.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss (under both non-current
and current assets)

In light of the exceptional volatility of the financial market, the Group has
proactively responded to rebalance and scale down its investment portfolio
from HK$98.2 million last year to HK$22.8 million this year. All the equity
securities and unlisted debt securities have been offloaded and the year end
balance represented conservative investments of HK$20.1 million listed
debt securities and HK$2.7 million unlisted mutual funds.
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Cash and cash equivalents

During the year, the cash and cash equivalents decreased from HK$200
million to HK$174 million, mainly due to the purchase consideration
payments of HK$61.5 million for the Igor’s Group acquisition,
compensating by proceeds from the downsizing of investment portfolio.
Subsequent to year end, the Group further paid HK$95.0 million as balance
payment of the consideration for the Igor’s Group.

Creditors, deposits and accruals

Creditors, deposits and accruals increased substantially mainly due to the
consideration payable for acquisition of Igor’ Group of HK$95.0 million
(2008: HK$21.5 million) and the consolidation of Igor’s Group into the
Group as of year end.

Deferred income

Pacific Coffee loyalty card program launched during last year received
encouraging response from customers. For the year under review, an
increase of HK$1.1 million was recorded. In addition, an advance of Pacific
Coffee franchise income of HK$1.0 million was received and booked as
deferred income.

Bank borrowings

As mentioned above, following the acquisition of SEL, the total bank
borrowings under current and non-current liabilities increased from
HK$20.5 million last year to HK$28.3 million at year end.

Material acquisition

On 31st March 2009, the Group completed the acquisition of the remaining
51% interest in SEL. After the acquisition, SEL became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. For the year under review, the Group had twelve
months 49% contribution from the Igor’s Group of HK$11.2 million. The
consideration for the acquisition was satisfied by internal resources.

Intangible assets

The goodwill and trademarks from acquisitions of Pacific Coffee and SEL
are intangible assets to the Group. The acquisition of 51% of the Igor’s
Group during the year had given rise to HK$118 million goodwill and
HK$10.3 million trademarks, adding to the HK$53.2 million goodwill
attributable to the previous 49% interest owned. At year end, the Group
assessed the recoverable amounts of goodwill of Pacific Coffee and SEL and
determined such goodwill to be impaired by total of HK$119 million. The
main assumption leading to the impairment was the effect of future profit
forecasts which are severely affected by the prevailing deteriorated market
conditions and economic factors.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31st March 2009, the Group’s net asset attributable to equity holders
of the Company amounted to HK$405 million (2008: HK$593 million),
a decrease of HK$188 million or 31.7 % when compared with 2008.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$159 million, dividends paid during the
year of HK$17.2 million and reduction in fair value of available-for-sale
investments of HK$11.8 million.

Total debt to equity ratio was 7.0 % (2008: 3.5%) and net debt to equity
ratio was nil (2008: Nil), which are expressed as a percentage of total
borrowings and net borrowings respectively, over the total equity of
HK$405 million (2008: HK$593 million).

BORROWINGS

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s bank borrowings, all at floating
interest rate, amounted to HK$28.3 million (2008: HK$20.5 million) of
which HK$ 22.1 million is repayable after one year but not exceeding five
years. Cash and deposits at bank including structured deposits amounted to
HK$174 million (2008: HK$215 million) and there are no net borrowings
for the two years.

Finance costs for the year amounted to HK$0.5 million (2008: HK$2.0
million), a decrease of HK$1.5 million as compared with 2008.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st March 2009, bank loans of HK$1.8 million (2008: Nil) were
secured by charges on property, plant and equipment of HK$2.2 million
and prepaid lease payments of HK$1.6 million.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, the Company had contingent liabilities in respect
of guarantees issued for banking facilities of amount up to HK$29.7 million
(2008: HK$21.0 million) granted to wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital commitment of the Group as at 31st March 2009 amounted to
HK$0.6 million (2008: Nil), being commitment for plant and equipment.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. To achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds,
the Group’s treasury activities are centralised. Cash is generally placed in
short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong or US dollar. The
Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently reviewed. In
anticipating new investments or maturity of bank loans, the Group will
consider new financing while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with the increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfil its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) came into effect on Ist January 2005. The
CG Code sets out two levels of corporate governance practices namely,
mandatory code provisions that a listed company must comply with or
explain its non-compliance, and recommended best practices that a listed
company is encouraged to comply with but need not disclose in the case of
non-compliance. The Company is in compliance with the mandatory code
provisions of the CG Code except for the following non-compliance:

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a
specific term.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The directors, individually and collectively, must act
in good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies, monitors and
evaluates its operating and financial performance and reviews the corporate
governance standard of the Company. It also decides on matters such as
annual and interim results, major transactions, director appointments
or re-appointment, and dividend and accounting policies. Management
profile of the Company as at the date of this report are set out on pages 20
to 23.

The Board comprises 6 Executive Directors and 4 Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The full Board met five times during the year under
review. The attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and the Board
Committees Meetings is set out in the table below:
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PR (R ERERTAD(REERTA)
ER-_TERF—A—BER - BEEATE
FIAMERERMERERTE - B @bl
AMEX—LE M AR WBEST - S EfAREET
AMEX IS RIELRE - REZBRREFR—
B LT AR MAETERFRERESRNE
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NENE2WEEF23H -
BECHANBRITER RN EBYIERTES
MK BEERFARBITHARIASE  SES
FEEREENEEZECLRNHBEERNT:

Meetings Attended/Held

SREHEBTRE

Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
BE BEER ERERE FMZEEE
Executive Directors
WITES
Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) 5/5 - -
BEE L (EE)
Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar (Managing Director) 4/5 - 1/1
B E S (EFAAEE)
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang 5/5 - -
LG AE S E
Miss Lily Chow 4/5 - -
JAFIF] /N E
Mr Chang Wan Lung, Robert 5/5 - 1/1
RERELE
Mr Ho Sai Hou 5/5 - -
At S &
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Meetings Attended/Held

SRUEBITRE

Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
==} =) EREEE FMESE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
HUHNTESE
Mr Shinichi Yonehara 5/5 2/2 1/1
KIRE—FZE
Mr Wu King Cheong 5/5 2/2 1/1
A B S
Mr Leung Kwong Kin 5/5 2/2 1/1
Mr Lau Kai Shu, Frank 5/5 2/2 1/1

BIREAE &

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each other save for that Dr Chow is the father of Mr
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
the four Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their Independence
and concluded that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Since the Board is involved in the appointment of new Directors, the
Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The Board will
take into consideration criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and
commitment when considering new director appointments. All candidates
must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the
Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director should also meet the independence criteria set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings
of the Company. New Directors appointed by the Board during the
year are required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the
annual general meeting or general meeting immediately following their
appointments. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors, or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third are required to retire from office by
rotation and no later than the third annual general meeting since the last
re-election or appointment of such Director.

Appointment of Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Directors were considered and confirmed by full Board on 1st April 2008.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same person. The Chairman of the Company is Dr Chow Yei Ching and
the Managing Director is Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. The role of the
Chairman is separate from that of the Managing Director. The Chairman is
responsible for overseeing the functioning of the Board while the Managing
Director is responsible for managing the Group’s businesses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms of
reference. Mr Leung Kwong Kin, Independent Non-Executive Director, is
the Chairman of the committee. He is qualified accountant with extensive
experience in financial reporting and controls. Other members include
all other Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr Shinichi
Yonehara, Mr Wu King Cheong and Mr Lau Kai Shu, Frank. The Audit
Committee is responsible for the appointment of external auditors, review
of the Group’s financial information and oversight of the Group’s financial
reporting system, internal control procedures and risk management
frameworks. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and final results
of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval. Its
terms of reference are accessible on the Company’s website, http://www.
chevalier.com.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31st March
2009. At the meetings, it reviewed the connected transactions (if any), the
interim results for the six months ended 30th September 2008 and last
year’s final results for the year ended 31st March 2008, and has reviewed
with Management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the auditing, internal controls, financial reporting
matters and risk management systems of the Group. The final results for the
year ended 31st March 2009 were reviewed by the Audit Committee in its
meeting held on 14th July 2009.

The Audit Committee of the Company regularly discusses with the
management the system of internal control to ensure an effective internal
control system albeit that amendment of the terms of reference of Audit
Committee became effective on 1st January, 2009 with the Board approval
to include new responsibility including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of accounting and financial reporting
function, and training programmes and budget.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10th March 2005 with
written terms of reference. Mr Wu King Cheong is the Chairman of the
committee. Other members of the committee include Messrs Shinichi
Yonehara, Leung Kwong Kin, Lau Kai Shu, Frank, Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar and Chang Wan Lung, Robert. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for reviewing and determining the compensation and benefits
of the Directors and senior management of the Company. Its terms of
reference are accessible on the Company’s website, http://www.chevalier.
com.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended 31st
March 2009 to review the remuneration packages paid to Directors and
senior management for the year ended 31st March 2009.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
business to an Executive Committee which was established in 1989.
Members of the Executive Committee comprise 6 Executive Directors,
namely Dr Chow Yei Ching, Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr Kuok Hoi
Sang, Miss Lily Chow, Mr Chang Wan Lung, Robert and Mr Ho Sai Hou.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective internal controls in the Group. During the year, the Board
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal control, covering financial, operational, compliance control and
risk management functions. Subsequent to 1st January 2009, being the
effective date of the amended Listing Rules, the Board has considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget. The Group’s system of internal control includes
a defined management structure with limits of authority, and is designed
to help the Group achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to manage
rather than eliminate all risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems
and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal controls of the Group and reports directly to the Chairman.
It has unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s activities
and internal controls. It also conducts special audits of areas of concern
identified by Management or the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit
Department adopts a risk-based audit approach. All audit reports are
circulated to the Audit Committee and key management. The Internal
Audit Department is also responsible for following up the implementation
of recommendations and corrective actions. The Audit Committee has
free and direct access to the Head of Internal Audit Department without
reference to the Chairman of the Board or management.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2009 on a
going concern basis.

The Auditor of the Company acknowledge their reporting responsibilities
in the auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st March 2009 as set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
page 45 to 46.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31st March 2009, the fees paid/payable
to the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
auditors to the Group were as follows:

ZEE 2 B &
BE_TTAF=A=+—ALMBEER
AN S A BB SR 4 2 A B Lt I A RS
EXf/ERREAHS T -

Nature of services Amount (HK$’000)
B & SHEOCEBT T
Audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers 1% iR 7% —BEFAKBEFRNEBAT 790
— other auditors — H fh & 5T EM 96
Non-audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers ~ JERZEIRF — & KR KELFAIEFAT 85
— other auditors —E M Esam 158

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model Code throughout the
year.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

To enhance the community relations, the Group has participated different
charitable and voluntary organisation in various community activities and
taken care for the environment. During the year and up to the date of this
report, Pacific Coffee aligns with the corporate philosophy of Chevalier
Group to demonstrate its care to the community and the environment. It
provides its customers with “Sumatra Organic”, organic certified beans
grown in harmony with natural ecology of the tropical rainforest and
“Columbian Organic”, fair-trade certified beans which can relieve farm
workers from poverty in fair trade without exploitation. In addition,
Pacific Coffee also supported a charity program “Operation Santa Claus”
by placing donation boxes in shops. Moreover, Pacific Coffee offered
the support to “SCMP Homes for Hope” program to rebuilding homes
for those victims living in Sichuan by placing a donation box in every
coffeehouse to collect donations as well as launching various sales items for
charity.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group’s senior management maintains close communications with
investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various channels
including individual interviews and meetings. The Group also responds
promptly to request for information and queries from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or
Management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely to the
shareholders and the public through the publication of interim and annual
reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The financial and other
information relating to the Group is disclosed on the Company’s website at
http://www.chevalier.com.
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The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31st March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are shown on
note 42 and note 20 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31st March 2009
analysed by business and geographical segments are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2009 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 48. An interim dividend
of HK1.0 cent per share was paid on Monday, 12th January 2009. The
Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0 cent
per share.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 21st
September 2009 to Wednesday, 23rd September 2009, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:00 p.m. on Friday, 18th September 2009.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme of the Company (the “CPHL Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of CIHL and shareholders of the Company
on 20th September 2002. Another share option scheme of CIHL (the
“CIHL Scheme”) was also approved by the shareholders of CIHL on 20th
September 2002. The CPHL Scheme and the CIHL Scheme fully comply
with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. During the year, no share option was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the CPHL Scheme and the
CIHL Scheme. There was no outstanding option under the CPHL Scheme
and the CIHL Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Particulars of the share option schemes are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31st March 2009, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to HK$17.2 million (2008: HK$115 million).
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Movements in investment property of the Group during the year are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31st March
2009 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on
pages 2 to 3 and on pages 27 to 31 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest suppliers accounted for 70.7% of the Group’s purchases
for the year whereas the five largest customers was less than 30% of the
Group’s revenue for the year. The largest supplier accounted for 37.6%
of the Group’s purchases and the largest customer was less than 30%
of the Group’s revenue. None of the Directors, their associates nor any
shareholder (whom to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5.0% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s
five largest suppliers or five largest customers.

INFORMATION OF PROPERTIES

Information of the properties of the Group as at 31st March 2009 is set out
on page 26.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed approximately 1,090 full-time staff under its
subsidiaries globally as at 31st March 2009. Total staff costs amounted to
HK$72.9 million for the year ended 31st March 2009. The remuneration
policies are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market
trend, company performance and individual performance. Other staff
benefits include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical
schemes, retirement schemes and employees’ share option scheme.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations of HK$108,000 to charitable
bodies.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws although there are no restriction against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar (Managing Director)
Mr KUOK Hoi Sang

Miss Lily CHOW

Mr CHANG Wan Lung, Robert
Mr HO Sai Hou (appointed on 1st April 2008)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Shinichi YONEHARA

Mr WU King Cheong

Mr LEUNG Kwong Kin

Mr LAU Kai Shu, Frank

(appointed on Ist April 2008)
(appointed on st April 2008)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Messrs
KUOK Hoi Sang, Shinichi YONEHARA and WU King Cheong shall retire
from office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. The Independent Non-Executive Directors
are subject to the same retirement requirements as the Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Messrs CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar, KUOK Hoi Sang,
Shinichi YONEHARA and HO Sai Hou are interested in certain contracts
in that they are the Directors and/or have beneficial interests in Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (“CIHL”).

Save as aforementioned, no other contract of significance to which the
Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31st March 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the share, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”), which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in
the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to S352 of the SFO or as
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(a) Interestsin the Company — Shares

2
N

EERFETHAEZEZED

R-ZEAF=A=+—B ARAEERE
ZITRABRAD B R B R A (F % R 5%
HRAAEGEE ([E5 KRS GG EXVE) 2
By ABERG REFD BB IREES K
B GERISXVEFE T RIS HAB AR AR

%x%z@ s RER (BREARBESRE L

78 75 N B RIS SR E TR B 2 1
&LF)‘&MmlaﬂﬁFﬁﬁ g5 '
ﬁ%%%ﬁMﬁEM?TEZ§£%WZ%“
KER &@fﬁ STRIZAME AN AR R
Pzt mMERWMT :

(R) xRAEHE-KRH

Number of ordinary shares

EERKERHOEE
Approximate
Personal Corporate percentage
Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest
ExEH 514 8 AR DR EH B EEBY
%
CHOW Yei Ching Interest of controlled - 128,582,933 128,582,933 59.66
corporation
ERIY:L SRy NI o
KUOK Hoi Sang Beneﬁ;ial owner 2,400,000 — 2,400,000 1.11
Ely=2ao BEaBEAA
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar Beneficial owner 17,412,000 - 17,412,000 8.08
J& 4 IE BEmEAA
Shinichi YONEHARA Beneficial owner 600 - 600 0.00028

KIFE— BEamlEAA

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching has notified the Company that under the
SFO, he was deemed to be interested in 128,582,933 shares of the
Company which were held by CIHL as Dr Chow beneficially owned
154,682,359 shares in CIHL, representing approximately 55.73%
of the issued share capital of CIHL. Dr Chow was deemed to be
interested in these shares under the SFO and these shares were same
as those shares disclosed in the section “Substantial Shareholders’

Interests in Securities” below.

(b) Interests in Associated Corporation — Shares

AT ESRE H LB 154,682,359
Pefetn - A8 E L BIER A #)55.73% © 1RI&
ERRBEED  AETREAEFEL
B?%%%EZKQ =1 AR 17 128,582,933 it 2 1
wn AELWERBARATELAE -
?fiﬂxf\éﬂT‘Ezfazzzﬂx§EZZ e Fal
Pt 2 A% 0 48R

(2) HBARER-RH

Number of ordinary shares

EERRHOBE
Approximate
Associated Personal percentage
Name of Directors corporation Capacity interests Total of interest
ExEE LiEL N 514 Bz By ERBL
%
CHOW Yei Ching CIHL Beneficial owner 154,682,359 154,682,359 55.73
JE IR 5D HTER EREAA
KUOK Hoi Sang CIHL Beneficial owner 98,216 98,216 0.04
WL H+ B EmEAA
Shinichi YONEHARA CIHL Beneficial owner 1,671 1,671 0.001
KRE— H+ B ERBERA

40 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Schemes” below, as at 31st
March 2009, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company, no other person has interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO); or are required, pursuant to S352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein, or are required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Apart from the management agreement entered into with CIHL Group
as set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, no other
contract of significance concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries were participating
companies in the Chevalier Group Staff Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme”) as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
which is a defined contribution retirement scheme. The Scheme was
granted exemption from Mandatory Provident Fund regulations by the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority and shall not open to new
members starting from 1st December 2000. Certain of the Company’s
overseas subsidiaries contribute to their local government’s central pension
plans for their employees.

Pursuant to Government legislation, Bank Consortium Trust Company
Limited was selected by the Group as an alternative Mandatory Provident
Fund (the “MPF”) service provider for employees of the Group who join
the Group from 1st December 2000. The MPF is available to the employees
aged 18 to 65 and with at least 60 days of service under the employment of
the Group in Hong Kong. The benefits are required by law to be preserved
until the retirement age of 65.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES (continued)

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year amounted to
HK$3,366,000.

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31st March 2009, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons
or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under S336 of the SFO were as follows:

BIKEFHEI(E)
EJ*V\] AEEBEZSFE 2 BEREFT AL
AU K BB 3,366,000 7T ©

RARSFEIFHIEENEGRS M B RRM LA -

TERRZEHFEDS

W_ggnizﬂ =+—8" @%/Aaﬁ%%&
ZITRABRA - TOATSIEBRAR
foﬁjﬁﬁFgﬂx@q:ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁ@ﬁhﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂ%
B EXVEBSE 2 &35 BB E XA A A R 4 5% -

N BREERN AR EIRIEES KB E 555 336
fwarzuaﬁ-ﬂﬁng MEAWMT :

Number of Approximate
shares held percentage
Substantial shareholders Capacity (Long position) of interest
EEUY
FERK 56 BROBE(FR) RN
(%)
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 128,582,933 59.66
J& IR Em#EB A (Note 1) (Ff7E1)
MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner 128,582,933 59.66
BIIESTF Em#EB A (Note 2) (Fff7E2)
CIHL Beneficial owner 128,582,933 59.66
HE+HE Em#EB A
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar Beneficial owner 17,412,000 8.08
B4 E EmEAA
CHAN Alanna Beneficial owner 17,412,000 8.08
B3z 2 E=EAA (Note 3) (Fff7E3)
CHEN Wai Wai, Vivien Beneficial owner 18,800,000 8.72
fREE ERBEAA (Note 4) (ff7E4)
Crosby Investment Holdings Inc. Interest of controlled 18,800,000 8.72
corporation (Note 4) (ff7E4)
R e /N o~ ey
Nan Fung Resources Limited Interest of controlled 18,800,000 8.72
. corporation (Note 4) (Ff7E4)
HEERBRAG 2k NG
Gentfull Investment Limited Beneficial owner 18,800,000 8.72

BEERERRAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES (continued)
Notes:

1. Under the SFO, these shares were held by Dr Chow as corporate
interests in which Dr Chow was deemed to be interested.

2. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr
Chow, was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of those shares
held by Dr Chow.

3, Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Chan Alanna, the spouse of Mr Oscar
Chow, was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of those shares
held by Mr Oscar Chow.

4. Ms Chen Wai Wai, Vivien, Crosby Investment Holdings Inc., Nan
Fung Resources Limited are taken to be interested in 18,800,000
shares which were held by Gentfull Investment Limited. Gentfull
Investment Limited is wholly owned by Nan Fung Resources Limited
and in turn wholly owned by Crosby Investment Holdings Inc. which
is 100% owned by Ms Chen Wai Wai, Vivien.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2009, so far as is known to the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person has
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under S336 of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Except for the share option schemes adopted by the Company and its
associated corporations, at no time during the year was the Company or
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st March 2009, with deviations
from code provision A.4.1 which has already been stated in the Company’s
interim report for the period ended 30th September 2008.
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The Board of the Company is committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. The Company has complied throughout the year
ended 31st March 2009 with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules with exception of deviation. Detailed information on
the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report contained on pages 32 to 36 of the Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s share
which is in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares as at 15th July 2009, the latest practicable date to
ascertain such information prior to the issue of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15th July 2009

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chevalier Pacific
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 48 to 112, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31st March 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
March 2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15th July 2009

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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CONSOLIPATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st March 2009 2 =T FTNF=HA=+—HIEFE

48

2009 2008
—EEAEF —ZEENF
Note HK$’000 _HK$'000
Bt 5 BETT BT T
Continuing operations BEKEEK
Revenue Wak 5 317,572 311,442
Cost of sales SH & B AN (82,176) (78,978)
Gross profit E A , 235,396 232,464
Other expenses, net HmX  F58 B 6 (24,847) (5,463)
Other (losses)/gains, net Hih (B18), st FEB 7 (141,437) 503
Selling and distribution costs SHE AL SH A AN (238,541) (212,730)
Administrative expenses THRAX (3,956) (5,362)
Operating (loss)/profit gy (JE? 5 ),/ i A (173,385) 9,412
Share of results of associates PGBt & A ml S 4E 20 11,229 9,631
,,,,,,, (162,156) e
Finance income LURLION 8 1,247 1,431
Finance costs % E A 8 451) (2,014)
Finance income/(costs), net FEWA(BH)  F5E 8 796 (583)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEE (EE), % F 9 (161,360) 18,460
Income tax credit/(expenses) FiE#iEe(FAX) 10 2,590 (3,103)
(Loss)/profit for the year from REFELEEG 2
continuing operations R F (E18) /S5 A (158,770) 15,357
Discontinued operations FIFEREER
Profit for the year from REFFELEER 2
discontinued operations N ﬂ 14 - 10,660
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders ZANYNEETE & Tﬂ* A AEME
of the Company (E518), & 7 13 (158,770) 26,017
Dividends s 11 4,311 21,554
(Loss)/earnings per share B (E51R), /& F 12
From continuing operations REFFELEER
— Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) —H K &ﬁ& SE(EZRBN) (73.66) 7.23
From discontinued operations REFEFELEER
— Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) —E AR R EE (BN - 5.02
Total (HK cents per share) EEB (2 AEN) (73.66) 12.25

The notes on pages 54 to 112 are integral parts of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIPATED 5447»40/45 SHEET
GAWEAMRE

As at 31st March 2009 fizﬁﬂi A=+—H

2009 2008
—BBhE —TT)\&F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
b BMTR %I
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment property KREMZE 15 - 9,800
Property, plant and equipment M HE RERE 16 83,386 59,466
Prepaid lease payments TET A E3RIE 17 6,790 -
Goodwill ES 19 136,853 84,010
Trademarks i 19 118,337 108,000
Interests in associates PTG B & A B Z #EZR 20 1,079 77,963
Available-for-sale investments IR Hj EZ’E 21 7,193 19,423
Investments at fair value through RERIERA R EEE
profit or loss ZIRE 22 - 14,884
Amount due from an associate JiE U — R B & R RIIR 3K 20 - 25733
Non-current deposits FnBFLIRS 24 24,461 24,395
378,099 400,674
Current assets REBEE
Inventories wE 23 11,733 8,621
Debtors, deposits and MR - FHiRE
prepayments EENE O 24 39,404 22,881
Amount due from an associate Ji& U — R B & R RIIR 3K 20 311 1,367
Investments at fair value through i i=Eenl Tﬁ AR ERE
profit or loss ZIEE 22 22,824 83,317
Cash and cash equivalents ReEREEEEY 25 173,600 200,011
247,872 316,197
Current liabilities RBAE
Creditors, deposits and ERIER - FARSE
accruals NIEIRE R 26 162,398 71,490
Amount due to ultimate holding company FE A B 4% < b /NS 27 230 1,783
Amounts due to associates fgﬂﬁﬂw SUNEILEE 20 - 2,616
Deferred income L A 5,796 3,308
Current income tax liabilities & B FT ?E HaE 2,661 1,923
Bank borrowings ﬂ:‘l 1T 28 6,207 2,000
177,292 83,120
Net current assets RBEEFE 70,580 233,077
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABERE 448,679 633,751
ELFBERARAT 4
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CONSOLIPATED BEALANCE SHEET
GRAEAMRK

As at 31st March 2009 R—ZEZ HE=F=+—H

2009 2008
—2BRE —TTN\F
Note HK$°000 HK$000
Bt i E ik i P BETTT
Capital and reserves R &
Share capital % 29 107,770 107,770
Reserves ff& 8 30 297,692 485,282
Total equity wmER 405,462 593,052
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHRARE 31 21,101 22,199
Bank borrowings RITHEX 28 22,116 18,500
43,217 40,699
Total equity and non-current liabilities BERRIRBERS 448,679 633,751
Approved by the Board of Directors on 15th July 2009 and signed on its RESERN_FTTAFLATHARE I
behalf by: HTIEEREKREE:
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar KUOK Hoi Sang
B4 IE R/E
Director Director
3 EE

The notes on pages 54 to 112 are integral parts of these consolidated FHUEIRAZMEINFREMBERERZAE
financial statements. B EB 1D o
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54MIV¢E SHEET
A EARE

As at 31st March 2009 A= ;:—;ﬂi_ﬂ_wL 5|

2009 2008
—g2hE —TT)\&
Note HKS000  HK§000
B i BMTR A%t
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M HE RERE - 11
Interests in subsidiaries PTG MY B A 7] 2 #Ex 18 425,284 490,900
Interests in associates BT b 5?‘ ENBZER 20 - 67,377
Investments at fair value through RBmIRE QA ERE
profit or loss ZIRE 22 - 14,884
Amount due from an associate JFE U — 5 B 4 1 B IR X 20 - 2,733
425,284 575,905
Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments Fiiiz e RIEM /25’\ 8 24 1,859 223
Amounts due from subsidiaries & UL B /B A BIbR 3R 18 30,571 7,565
Amount due from an associate JfE U — 51 B 42 1 B IR 3R 20 - 1,367
Cash and cash equivalents ReEREEEEY 25 110,086 2,231
77777777 174%%,7571767 11,386
Current liabilities REBEE
Deposits and accruals FARKRS &?ﬁi\ 28 B 26 96,260 22,924
Amount due to ultimate holding company JES AR AR R RIR 3R 27 201 955
Amounts due to subsidiaries XNl INGIL SRS 18 8,369 2,291
,,,,,,,, 104,830 281l
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (AR FE 37,686 (14,784)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERARBER 462,970 561,121
Capital and reserves PR A R 1% 15
Share capital [N 29 107,770 107,770
Reserves s 30 355,200 453,351
Total equity wmER 462,970 561,121
Approved by the Board of Directors on 15th July 2009 and signed on its KREEFNR_TZT jl FtHAHTHEBA#E I
behalf by: EE T3 ﬁ % TJQ 2’% :
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar KUOK Hoi Sang
E#E S/ &
Director Director
E2 =2

The notes on pages 54 to 112 are integral parts of these consolidated Fo4Z IRB NN EGSAEERE 248
financial statements. B EBAD o
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CONSOLIPATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n\[

For the year ended 31st March 2009 #{ %

52

AR ER

— ==

NE=A=+—BIFE

Equity
attributable
to equity
holders of Minority Total
the Company interests equity
RDE R DBRR
REARGESRZ & 58 s
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT
At Ist April 2007 R-ZEZLFIHH—H 481,164 200 481,364
Exchange difference on translation BREG N B R T
of operations of RIGES
overseas subsidiaries ZINE K =R 5,153 - 5,153
Exchange fluctuation reserve realised REERBARIRER
upon disposal of subsidiaries Z N HHRE B R (7,253) - (7,253)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENER A = (200) (200)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale 7] i & 2 1% & #)
investments AREEY 11,011 - 11,011
Total income recognised HENER E e
directly in equity Z Y )\/vu 8,911 (200) 8,711
Profit for the year EINCIEDi 26,017 = 26,017
Total recognised income and expenses AN F[Z E TJE RUA K
for the year 7 EZ 34,928 (200) 34,728
Dividends paid B 15 R (15,087) = (15,087)
Issue of shares BITHR @ 93,922 - 93,922
Share issuance expenses BIIRNAEX (1,875) = (1,875)
At 31st March 2008 R-ZBZENF=HA=+—H 593,052 - 593,052
Exchange difference on translation BREGINHTE R ]
of operations of EBESE
overseas subsidiaries ZHNE H R (701) - (701)
Change in fair value of available- AHEHEZREDN
for-sale investments INTL ﬁ )
(11,783) - (11,783)
Fair value adjustments upon step-up L RS — B S A E
acquisition of interest in an associate ZHETHARBERAE 908 - 908
Total expenses recognised HERERER
directly in equity Z X B (11,576) - (11,576)
Loss for the year KEEEIE (158,770) - (158,770)
Total recognised income and expenses 2N 4F & 2 #ER UL A &
for the year sz 48 %8 (170,346) - (170,346)
Dividends paid B E (17,244) - (17,244)
At 31st March 2009 R-FFNF=A=1+—H 405,462 — 405,462

The notes on pages 54 to 112 are integral parts of these consolidated

financial statements.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIPATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
EARSHER

For the year ended 31st March 2009 BlZ —ZEZNF=A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—gBAE —TTN\F
Note K000 HKS000
B i BMTR A%t
Cash generated from operations REEEZRE 41 31,484 93,282
Hong Kong profits tax paid BHNEBFSH (2,998) (495)
Hong Kong profits tax refund BBEMFTRK - 2,539
Net cash inflow from RELEEK2
operating activities BERANEE 28,486 95,326
Investing activities REXHK
Interest received 2RI E 3,345 1,627
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEY % WSE T (14,114) (28,602)
Purchase of an investment property BEREME - (7,800)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEWE - BERZE
and equipment Z PSR %)7\ . 1,487 289
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BARHEEZRSE (3,775) =
Net cash outflow from step-up acquisition RELB—EBED @
of interest in an associate 2 KEm AR ﬁ ML FEE 32(a) (4,316) —
Investments in associates LA E AT (21,479) (14,837)
Amount due from an associate e L — fi B ”‘ M ENEILISE 4,100 (4,100)
Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal REHE |3ﬁ ’R Al
of subsidiaries IH & m A - 38,370
Net cash outflow from REBEXEKZ
investing activities HEREFE (34,752) (15,053)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow before MEZEKA 2
financing activities BEGEE)  RAEEE (6,266) 80,273
Financing activities S -E 30
Issue of shares TR D 29 - 93,922
Share issuance expenses BITRMAX 30 - (1,875)
Interest paid B FE (451) (2,105)
Dividends paid B A (17,244) (15,087)
Repayments of bank borrowings BEEITER (2,000) (77,500)
Net cash outflow from REMEEKZ
financing activities HERHFEE (19,695) (2,645)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and ) ﬁ RREEEY
cash equivalents WA, 1 0 (25,961) 77,628
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REDZHEER
of the year Re%EY 200,011 116,988
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates EXgFH2ZE (450) 5,395
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERCZBRERBESEEY 173,600 200,011
The notes on pages 54 to 112 are integral parts of these consolidated % 54 ZIRBZWETIEHRE T BRE 2H
financial statements. B &R 17
HAZHERERAR]

“TTNFER
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ki W B ok M RE

54

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton,
HM12, Bermuda and 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong respectively. The
Company’s ultimate holding company is Chevalier International
Holdings Limited (“CIHL”), a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. Both CIHL’s and the Company’s shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 15th July 2009.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of investment property, available-for-sale
investments and investments at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKERS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& M R I gk

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EARETFTHERBE®

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued) (a) WBEEME(E)

Amendments effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on R-BEENFHNA—BBEBRZAEEH

1st April 2008 BEEERZIERT

— HKAS 39 Amendment, “Financial Instruments: Recognition — BB et ERFE395EFT AN [ Bf
and Measurement” and HKFRS 7 Amendment, “Financial BIE AL E] REBTK
Instruments: Disclosures” (effective from 1st July 2008). REMERE 7IREFTAN—[ B8 T A -
HKAS 39 Amendment permits reclassification of certain WE|I(BZZEE \itﬁ] Hift 4
financial assets out of the held-for-trading and available- W) o BB ERF395RIE ] A
for-sale categories if specified conditions are met. HKFRS 7 ]H}% ﬁFEfk/\ A HE (515

—/{H>?}

E&
.2
B4
“""‘n:n

SEEXZRAHKHESR

Amendments introduces disclosure requirements with respect

to financial assets reclassified out of the held-for-trading and bill ':F' T %%ﬁ DEE o BB B RE
available-for-sale categories. These amendments do not have ZERE7HREFT AR ETN D ERF
any impact to the Group, as the Group has not reclassified any BERXSRAHEERER 2 ,ﬁﬁﬁ% =
financial assets. ES| ABEHRE - EHEA$§E<EE?H\
BN D BEMMBEE  ZFER
HAEEVEREMTE -
New/revised standards, amendments and interpretation that are REBE-SENF=ZA=+—HLEEE
not yet effective for the year ended 31st March 2009 i RAEMZHETRERTER BT R
2
- HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements” — BB EAFIREIER) 8
(effective from 1st January 2009). HKAS 1 (Revised) requires BRERZEFR A (BAZEZNE
all owner changes in equity to be presented in a statement —H—HBHERER) BALLEA
of changes in equity. All comprehensive income is presented F15(KIER) BEXRGEE2HMEE S
in one statement of comprehensive income or in two CHEREENERSEFHRANTIUNE
statements (a separate income statement and a statement of wM-FMBEGEAWABE —MEE W
comprehensive income). It requires presenting a statement mARIUARDImE(— B
of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest KE—EERARIATINER -
comparative period in a complete set of financial statements WIBEE] A EEETENAENE
when there are retrospective adjustments or reclassification MOHEAER BE—MHR&EEZ
adjustments. However, it does not change the recognition, LhEREARI 16 2 TR B HRERAZ
measurement or disclosure of specific transactions and other % AR /R#E%:z AT - BEIE(EE]
events required by other HKFRSs. The Group will apply NI EﬂZ Al L qth B S B A R S 2
HKAS 1 (Revised) from 1st April 2009. BT EH R ER HHEMET 2
BR FEXRE - AEEKE -
ZTZNFMA— Elﬁﬂﬁﬂ NEE]

AHEERIE 15% (RBRIERT) -

- HKAS 23 (Revised), “Borrowing Costs” (effective from — %\% FTERIZE 2355 (5T — [ 15
Ist January 2009). The amendment requires an entity }UYZ’KJ (8= iiﬂi_ﬂ —H it
to capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable to the EE)&) LB E] E2 R E A IS -
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset BEgAE—HAEREE(RNS
(one that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for ZRERNEES L/\ HERAKEHEZ
use or sale) as part of the cost of that asset. The option of BE)BEEEMMZERKAIEER
immediately expensing those borrowing costs will be removed. {LRE  BEBRAASLEEERLF
The Group will apply HKAS 23 (Revised) from 1st April 2009. — IR Z K ZlS o 18 & FX Ak 7N B[ B A
The amendment will have no material impact on the Group’s REERAZEEEBEMER - A&
accounting policies as the Group’s existing accounting policy #BE T AFEI A — H AN
on borrowing costs complies with the amended requirements. BB ERE 235 (FEE]) ° B

MAEEHERKA ZRE G5
B aEEl Rz 23k - ILIEES
ﬁ%¥¢$§€ 2B BRI EERY

Bz iElRER QA 55
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WNOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATEL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G5B M ORI B
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
New/revised standards, amendments and interpretation that are
not yet effective for the year ended 31st March 2009 (continued)

- HKAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” (effective from Ist July 2009). The amendment
requires non-controlling interests (i.e. minority interests)
to be presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from the equity of the
owners of the parent. Total comprehensive income must
be attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests to have a deficit balance. Changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the loss
of control are accounted for within equity. When control of
a subsidiary is lost, the assets and liabilities and related equity
components of the former subsidiary are derecognised. Any
gain or loss is recognised in income statement. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary is measured at its fair value at
the date when control is lost. The Group will apply HKAS 27
(Revised) from 1st April 2010.

— HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments, “Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation”
(effective from 1st January 2009). The amendment requires
some puttable financial instruments and some financial
instruments that impose on the entity an obligation to deliver
to another party a pro rata share of the net assets of the entity
only on liquidation to be classified as equity. The Group will
apply HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments from 1st April 2009,
but they are not expected to have any impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

- HKFRS 2 Amendment, “Share-based Payment Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations” (effective from Ist January
2009). The amendment clarifies the definition of "vesting
conditions" and specifies the accounting treatment of
"cancellations" by the counterparty to a share-based payment
arrangement. Vesting conditions are service conditions
(which require a counterparty to complete a specified period
of service) and performance conditions (which require
a specified period of service and specified performance
targets to be met) only. All "non-vesting conditions" and
vesting conditions that are market conditions shall be taken
into account when estimating the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. All cancellations are accounted for as an
acceleration of vesting and the amount that would otherwise
have been recognised over the remainder of the vesting period
is recognised immediately. The Group will apply HKFRS 2
Amendment from 1st April 2009, but it is not expected to have
any impact on the Group's financial statements.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&6 M Ok I B

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHHERHSE@®

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued) (a) WBEEME(E)

New/revised standards, amendments and interpretation that are REBZ-_ZEZhF=A=1+—HLFE

not yet effective for the year ended 31st March 2009 (continued) ie g ERZHAT BBTER - BT R

’i (&)

— HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business Combination”, (effective for BB HE ER F35(LB
business combinations with acquisition date on or after the =) —[ZEEE 0] CAERNURES B &
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning R/RZZBETNEL A — B AERS
on or after 1st July 2009). The amendment may bring more 28 1. E E R4 BRI s A 18 2 575
transactions into acquisition accounting as combinations S0 BHRUAHUNENETZE
by contract alone and combinations of mutual entities are HEREZEER A FHE IR
brought into the scope of the standard and the definition HE - MERZEEIMEIEEE
of a business has been amended slightly. It now states that LIBERT Al REFE R 2 R FAKA K
the elements are “capable of being conducted” rather than et R P 0R o 1t XE AR B 5 BH 3%
“are conducted and managed”. It requires considerations EoE (A FET] MIET FLAET
(including contingent consideration), each identifiable asset FER| THREREB(BEFEHIAR
and liability to be measured at its acquisition-date fair value, B) ZBEAHNEERAGEEAER
except leases and insurance contracts, reacquired right, HiEA#Y NRAEFE EHE
indemnification assets as well as some assets and liabilities RRBEH)  EHWEEF - BE
required to be measured in accordance with other HKFRSs. BEMBREEMBESNEREE
They are income taxes, employee benefits, share-based AlstEzE TEERBEARIN -
payment and non-current assets held for sale and discontinued ERREMER  EERA - UK
operations. Any non-controlling interest in an acquiree MAERNRERBELRE 2ERD
is measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling BENMIEEBERELSET - HIEA
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable ) Z Em JEE Hx % =IRA R EE
assets. The Group will apply HKFRS 3 (Revised) from st April % JE PR IR B A W B R B 2 AT A
2010. RIFAEZLBIGHE - AREKE

—T-TFEMA-HREANEEY
B ERIFE 3 5% (BER]) °

- HKERS 8, “Operating Segments” (effective from 1st January — ERAMELEED L [
2009). HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14. The new standard requires SE|I(BE-_EENF—HA—H#E4E
a ‘management approach’, under which segment information W) o B RS R A B 5 g SR EL AL
is presented on the same basis as that used for internal EB SRS 145 o A HER|
reporting purposes. The Group will apply HKFRS 8 from 1st EREASE L] o EER
April 2009. The expected impact is still being assessed in detail JEIR BB N 2R L 2 ME R £
by management, but the manner in which the segments are EZ o REBKE —TT HEN
reported is not expected to change significantly. B— BRENE BT ERERED S

85% o B I [ IR IF & 40 ¥ b # E R
ZHREFE  ERE DRI
BRI ERINEARE -

- HK(IFRIC)-Int 13, “Customer Loyalty Programmes” — EB(ARpEfRLEREZEe)—
(effective from 1st July 2008). HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 clarifies that 223 Fﬁ, [ ER2] (5
where goods or services are sold together with a customer —EEN\FE+H—BHHEEWR) - F
loyalty incentive (for example, loyalty points or free products), B (ERERERBEEED) B
the arrangement is a multiple-element arrangement and EE3EEE T NEERSRES
the consideration receivable from the customer is allocated IREE —IA T P B E S E T2 (fI
between the components of the arrangement using fair values. MAHES S D) mEL - 8
The interpretation has no material impact on the Group’s ERTHERZSNEAS T
accounting policies as the Group’s existing accounting policy EWEE Y REBEFNBALEES
complies with the requirements. EIERAAS TSN DE o BR

AEERB L EABRNACE
FoHERBEHAEEZ @5 BR
WREBRNZE o

HLFBRBARAT 5o
—EENEER
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
New/revised standards, amendments and interpretation that are
not yet effective for the year ended 31st March 2009 (continued)

Apart from the above, a number of improvements and minor
amendments to HKFRSs have also been issued by the HKICPA
but they are not yet effective for the accounting period ended
31st March 2009 and have not been adopted in these financial
statements. The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these improvements and minor amendments would be
in the period of initial application, but is not yet in a position to state
whether these improvements and minor amendments would have a
significant impact on the Group's results of operation and financial
position.

(b) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31st March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the identifiable net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in the income statement.
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&6 M Ok I B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREHBRHE®
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (continued) (b) #HEWREEHEE)
When a business combination involves more than one exchange BHEBEHIRZNR —ARBRITS
transaction, the fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, %EZ WEENARBEE  BBENMRKAA
liabilities and contingent liabilities may be different at the date BEONAREARGENRTRZMZSHH
of each exchange transaction. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, A e ?)i 1 ﬁ% ENRAIBREE  BER
liabilities and contingent liabilities must then be recognised by the EEZ=! ﬁ VERWEERNRKWER ZA
acquirer at their fair values at the acquisition date, any adjustment to hEER BEENEENBEREES
those fair values relating to previously held interests of the acquirer 2N EREM RS AE G IR A
is a revaluation and shall be accounted for as such. IR ©
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements MBEFE  WBRAEZHBHREAIESR
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the B UFRESHBRRERAEER @5 K
Group’s accounting policies. T —H e
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses FMESBERNAGRZRS &t A
are eliminated on consolidation. All unrealised gains/losses are FHEASIRGAEREE  TAEREZIRK
eliminated. &=/ R’ -
In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are Br{G Mt B A B 2 RE 25 1L pk AN 0 b5 BB B
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of ERERNARRIEEGBERIIKR - B
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of dividend NBZEERARRQRIRD W N EWK S
received and receivable. BRI o

(c) Goodwill/discount on acquisitions (0 WHEE &
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate, U BE B B8 A B sk B A R FTE & 2 R
representing the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s BIUCEE sk A B AN &= B A e B & A e (L
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and BB AR SR GE 2 A #BEE -
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or associate at the date BERIABBZANBZERE Nk
of acquisition, is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment B AR AE fr] REHRE BT 18 51 R o
losses.
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented WEHBARMELEZEERNGEEE
separately in the consolidated balance sheet. Goodwill arising on an BERADHE §IJ uﬁz B2 N PTE
acquisition of an associate is included in the cost of the investment of EZEBWAB @S AT ZIREN o

the relevant associate.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Goodwill/discount on acquisitions (continued)

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if there is indication that goodwill might be
impaired. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in
investments in respective associates and is tested for impairment
as part of the overall balance. For the purposes of impairment
testing, separately recognised goodwill arising from an acquisition
is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units (“CGUs”),
or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to
the other assets of the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the income statement. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of subsidiary or associate, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or
an associate represents the excess of the net fair value of an acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of the business combination and is recognised immediately in the
income statement.

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of
the acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be
measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition.

(d) Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in
equity of the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&6 M Ok I B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREHBRHE®
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Interests in associates (continued) (d FEHEATZEZR(B)
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the W B B ZS 3R Y S £ B o 4 B o R B R R
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent BHBERZIHANEE  BEKRKIA
liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is BEZARBEFEPAERRZEME
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying B ERAREE -HENGFAREZ
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of EmEE YHIEASSSNHIEE ZRBEET
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value e AREBOGZAHANEE . BF
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the RAABERAREFREEm U EEK
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in REZEZ7EMEZsE  eREFHTHEE
the income statement. W ES R AR °
Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, EEECEEASE  BERRETR
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the S FSREZHREREEMREE HEH
Group’s interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent that FEUAREEBNREMEE S AR 2 S AR
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset WHEZAEEGEIRECEHEEEZR
transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is recognised. %Eﬁ B EERT BIEEBFTIRAEE

e

(e)  Financial instruments (e) HBEIA
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance EEBCEKRABTREANIEX ZFTHE
sheet when a Group entity becomes a party to the contractual B R EEMBEEREEAGR
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities AER - WBREELTBFEERINAA
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are REFE - BEEFAWRBRETHRE
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and BERTHAE(RERKREA L ESIR
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities CHBEENMBEERERIN 225K
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the K RBERERERTEEEST K E
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, BzARBEMASIR(NER) - B
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the EEKRERERIREAABREZWE
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value BESIMNBRBZRIKA - KR
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the income W a2k RHERR ©
statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash ENREEWRRESREZENER - X
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred MBEENEERASBEEEZEY
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards EEEEARE BRI DR K e R -
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial BB S RS R o PRI AR
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum RYBEER ZHEEEIKRMERD
of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that WREBMEENERERZ 25T Wk
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the income B @Mz Z5 R IERAER o
statement.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified EHEBESATEI A E LA RS
in the relevant contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. The [ B - B TS B S A RUEE FE R o R
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability HERA VKA BEZIREESRD s’
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in RREZEZZERNRZRAER -

the income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(i)  Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or
available-for-sale investments. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
each category of financial assets are set out below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those
financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are re-measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the income statement in the period in

which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including debtors, amount
due from an associate and cash and cash equivalents) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are
reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the
asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject
to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREHBRHE®

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) (e) BIHEIAE

(i)  Financial assets (continued) (i) HBIEBEZEE)
Available-for-sale investments AR EZRE
Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are Al & 2 R E AW IE T SR K &
either designated or not classified as any of the other categories DREXEAMEMBERNZIETET
set out above. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial B RPN ERBRSEEER -
recognition, available-for-sale investments are measured at AHHEZRERAAEFE A
fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, RNEBEZEENIERER B2
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be HEERHHENETEHRRE " &
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously BBTRERERZ 25t aEk
recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised B8 B AR - WK E R A
in the income statement. Any impairment losses on available- R AIEE 2 RE Z ERIRER
for-sale investments are recognised in the income statement. BRI ERARER - A #HEE 2R
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments AR E B E BT 2 7 B 1% 2R
will not be reversed through the income statement in BRWEERER - HAEHE ZE
subsequent periods. For available-for-sale debt investments, BIREMS @ MZREARBELIE
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in INEE FEERREEEETELE
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an ZEHER AIEERBEEEER
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment losses. Hig#E o
Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a TE )& BB Th %5 W0 B T35 3R 8 B R A Al
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair SEEMEARBEZAHTE ZBRAE
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less & AR AR E AR B R ERE
any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date BEZE B RR 2 REEBEZY -
subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss is BEEBEERBERIRALEE
recognised in the income statement when there is objective HIRFER  RIEIRER - BE
evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the BEGELEERDERRZRRN
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the BEEZRITMSERERE (A
carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the SAARKEBEESMEREZEZFHE
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market BRAREEE NS bER AR EE -
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
losses will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity (i) HBEEEBERRAEZ
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a BHEBCESRT 2 VFEaBEREAR
group entity are classified according to the substance of the B TR 26N TN
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a UMM EEEREAESZT A
financial liability and an equity instrument. ZEEMDHE o
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual % AN 4 2 I L AR E EEEERG
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its Eam(KMBREMERE) 2E[E
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into %) o K& Zﬁﬁﬁ% BEIMBEAER
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other MR A A T BREZBEEaERE T’@
financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect VBBE BUBAaERKRAER
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below: TEMRA\ZETHREHIOT :
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss /F\é\faﬁﬁfﬁz AN EEEZHEEE
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are REZIREA j‘ﬁ BREZHEAaE
financial liabilities held for trading on initial recognition. TRBEXRERFERER S 201
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, BE -REAEREZE—EEE
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are re- B RERKREAABERE VB
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised BERAREBEFTE EAAE
directly in the income statement in the period in which they FHEEREEARR 2 WFZRPE
arise. R o
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank borrowings,
creditors, amount due to ultimate holding company and
associates are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(f) Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is

classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating leases
are classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest
of the definition of investment property is met. The operating lease
is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property
is carried at fair value. Fair value is determined by professional
valuation conducted as at the balance sheet date. Changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of
the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement as part

of the other (losses)/gains, net.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If an item
of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses
a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income

statement.
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&6 M Ok I B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREHBRHE®

POLICIES (continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (g YHE BERREHE

(i)  Properties i) Y= \ \
Properties held for own use are stated at cost less accumulated BEEZERWE  DEKAERZ
depreciation and impairment losses. S E R AT REEBEIINIEA
Depreciation is provided on the cost of the buildings on a BF2HENKEEHLFREBER
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 50 LAE R R B AR B i 5T 52 B AF A
years or the remaining terms of the respective leases, whichever 20E50F 3K BHEE 2 RIRFH(SA
is the shorter after considering the residual value. BIREBLE)GTH -

(ii)  Plant and equipment (i) BMERXE - .
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated BB R RE IR AERRFINE
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is provided K EBREEBINIRA - BE K&
to write off the cost of plant and equipment over their RETECEBEMGT 2 FR(E
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis after taking into B REGEERFEH )S?T 5| by &
account their estimated residual value at the following rates BELAEFEFT R MEEK A -
per annum:

Annual charge BERE

Store machine, leasehold Over the shorter of the term B HENE 12 10%-33 /3%

improvement and equipment of the lease, or 10%-33 /3% BT RRBEEFH

MEZBRESE

Furniture, fixtures, office equipment 10%-30% B £E - WAE 10%-30%
and motor vehicles REBRAE

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its WEEREES A G TKE25E Al

recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its ZEEZIIREERNRFHEZE E A E @

estimated recoverable amount. B o

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is i & ok 3R 2 éf EMEL 2Kk BB T

determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and HEEMSAEFREERIREECEZ5E

the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income BT WRIKZRKRIER -

statement.

(h) Prepaid lease payments (hy FERNEER

Prepaid lease payments represent upfront premiums paid for land FENHEE ?ﬁ( Iﬁ ?El XS AR R 2 FE A AR

cost. Prepaid lease payments are charged to income statement over B - ENAERBUESENEMET

the term of relevant land leases on a straight-line basis. HEBAGT A W 3% °

(i) Trademarks G BEE

On initial recognition, trademarks acquired separately and during REXERE - B 5 R K7

business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value = 19? i FZ]TE DRERAE R A B

respectively. After initial recognition, trademarks with finite R EBHRERL é - ARERAFH A

useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and R AER 2B E R REREEE

impairment losses. Amortisation for trademarks with finite useful Stk - EREAFERZHEHAIT - THIA
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful EREHARE G ERFHIE - &

lives. Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less R 1 B 80 2 i IS iR A AN EDR R &R (E

any accumulated impairment losses. E1E IR o

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a trademark are REHERRIRTEE 2 Hﬂl @ R BRIk %

measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 18 & B 2 o & 1S sIEF ﬁE E H R [ (8

the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income ZEBEIE  URHEBERZEEER

statement when the asset is derecognised. R e &R AR °

Trademarks are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if HESFETRENR  WBEDTRET

there is indication that the assets might be impaired. BERAERE  BE EZEITR -

HLFBRRARAT oo
—EENEER
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable
value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds in the
ordinary course of business less applicable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown as a separate current liability in the balance
sheet.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and cash equivalents.

Revenue recognition

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and title to the goods has passed to the customers. Revenue is arrived
at after deduction of any sales returns, discount and value-added tax.

Income from rendering of services is recognised at the time when
services are rendered. Receipts in advance of provision of services are
accounted for as deferred income.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, with
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset’s
net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's
rights to receive payment have been established.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the respective leases.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Rental payables under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivables as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

2

()

(k)

(m)

FETHEME @

A
FEIEKARSNAIZE FE _H 2 RIE
{E AR o BN DA 523 e HOESH B o 7] &
ﬁ@ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%@ﬁZi%ﬁ%%?
/T)\IE\/UZ ﬁ%sﬂiz%@gﬁi °
HeRELEEY
ReRBEEEVEEFRRES  RIT
BAFH REBEANBEBE=MA2E
MmEHRERBEREUNRBITES °
gg BXUARBDEEEYRATEEER

%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%$%kﬁ@&ﬁu%g

Wy 55 2 FE R
HEEmMEL 2 Wa IR E mX hi&
EnEREEER %@ﬁ&ﬁ% Y 28
ERERAAHERD  AMRIEER -

TR RS P15 2 Y AR FR 1 AR 7% s B o
%%Hfﬁxﬁl | FAU 2z FRIR T B IR R T W

BTGB E 2 M B S TR L PR
UIRBAS R M B =
%ﬂTﬁﬁﬂ%%QFZﬁ%ﬁﬁg

=3
=

BT RARRBEESWAZTERITEE ZE
HFBZLE-
TEZBREWATIR A S B W EGRIE 2
1 R HE LB RE SR AR ©

EXUEEZHSRATDREREERE

HEFHAK -

HE

EHEGRAREL %%ﬁ%%?iZk
%@Hﬁ&%mi%%EﬁA ZER
MRS EEHE ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁ
WRBEXEHEE -

A BER LA

EXRMEHEECHS RSN AREENR
MESER BB RAER - piEm k%
PFEXMEEMEL 2 B REEMK AR
AEBMBEEEEC IREE  XXHEEH

BAB A ER B
%%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁx

EXMMERAT ZENEESREAEES
%ﬁuﬁ?&?k% SR ° ﬁﬁﬁi*
EMUEHE B 2 B0 R ERH &
m@%%%uﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz

IR



(n)

(0)

WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& 0 BB R I A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREHBRHE®
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs (n) fEREAE

Borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the period B ARE & BT KRR AR -

in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies (o) Hhik

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group RiE R AR & B2 2 B iS5 mREF -
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency AZ ¥ e B AN 2 B8 (S8 )
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional TZRPFHUEX A BRAEXRKBRE
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment RNEEE(AZtELEMTEEELE
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on M@z EE)AR -REEHE R - AN
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary S EzvEEEIERYIREER 2ERE
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates RME AR ERINEEZIEER
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at BHEAREERAAES H 2 @A E X’
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at HoREEMAUIINEGTE 2 IEEE T
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. IHE BEBRE -

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in

a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, REERBEEEEIARRELEZEL
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the EEHPREEAHBAR K ERPER -
income statement in the period in which they arise, except for MEMWER ZB IEREEKASERE
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part INEB 2R EFE— MM 2EBHIER
of the Group's net investment in a foreign operation, which are MmMESLBIBRIN  FEHEBERT  REEEH
recognised in equity in the consolidated financial statements. BHRERZEDZAER - RALEDIRZ
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary EEBHEBERKRENRERELE ZE L
items carried at fair value are included in the income statement for ZENZ AR ERIIR - EEHR
the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non- EEEREaNERNRNEEZEE
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised WIEE FTEL 2 ZRERIN  FEUEIERT ¢
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange components of that s ok B8 2 [E KD M EE RN Em A
gain or loss are also recognised directly in equity. e o

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, HEVGEUEHRERMS » AEEEF I
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are ¥R BEENBBENREEHARAZ
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the PR EM 7 ERAEXRBRE  mMEK AR
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their X BIRZ AR 2 FHERRE - R
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates P& R pA sz HARE A HH 2R KRR ShBIVEBIlGR -
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during EHBRAT ARARZERAZERAE
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the RoPiEAZIENZX (A ) THHERE
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, A% 7N 4 25 2 W8 7 3 {0 (SN 5 3R0% 8
are recognised as a separate component of equity, the exchange ) ZEEHZBIINEBINEBHEN
fluctuation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the R e = AR o

income statement in the period in which the foreign operation is

disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired R_ZEZRFMA—BHURERES
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1st April INEFEEIRBEA A BRI EEMELE
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation NEELALBERAE  DEESINER
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet ZEENBE WKEEH 2 BEREXR
date. Exchange differences so arising are recognised in the exchange BHE - FTEAZERZBENRE L ZEE
fluctuation reserve. HAMER o

Retirement benefits costs (p BARBEIEH

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans including R

| Efﬁ%ﬂ%&%%ﬂﬁ%ﬂ%?ﬁ%\iﬁ%ﬁ il 1

the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong are charged as NESTE 2 HFN BN AENENRE
an expense as they fall due, net of forfeited contributions. B HRIERER -

Bz iElRER QA
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(@) Taxation
Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes income statement
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and interests in
associates except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

(r) Impairment

Assets that have indefinite useful lives or have not yet been available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units “CGU”). Assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&6 M Ok I B

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the note
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will
then be recognised as a provision.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged
in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of segments
operating in other economic environments. The Group has chosen
business segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment information as the secondary reporting
format.
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WNOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATEL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

G5B M ORI B

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss,
debtors, amounts due from/to associates, creditors, amount due
to ultimate holding company, cash and cash equivalents and bank

borrowings.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in

respective notes to the consolidated financial statements. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The bank deposits, investments in debt securities and
bank borrowings are exposed to fair value interest rate
risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The floating-rate
bank borrowings and short-term bank deposits are
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk. The management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
needs arise.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by one
percentage point and all other variables were held
constant, the post-tax loss of the Group for the year
ended 31st March 2009 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$306,000 (2008: post tax profit
increase/decrease by HK$1,463,000) resulting from the
changes in the interest income from bank deposits and
borrowing costs of bank borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the Group entity’s
functional currency. The Group has certain investments
in foreign operations, which net assets/liabilities are
exposed to foreign currency translation risk. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets/liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations is managed primarily
through borrowings denominated in the relevant
foreign currencies.

Major financial instruments under foreign currencies
(other than the functional currencies of the Group
entities) that are exposed to foreign exchange risk are
denominated in the United States dollar (“US dollar”),
to which Hong Kong dollar is pegged.

7 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&6 M Ok I B

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 MBEREEESERBE®
AND POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BiEEEREZEE)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) TEREEEGE)
(i) Price risk (iii) 1EERER
The Group and the Company are exposed to equity price AEBERARNRAREDEAS
risk through its investment in equity securities classified AHEE 2B R EBERIK
as either available-for-sale investments or investments at BAREREZIKERRA
fair value through profit or loss. Management manages BHIEE M R A ER R
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments b o B3R EFE A E R TR E
with different risks. The Group and the Company’s e EHEEREZERR -
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity. In REBRARRDE 2 BRAER
addition, management has appointed a special team to R EZERRES o o
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk EREEZERANDAEER
exposure should the need arise. BERRER WRFERERE
AR RE -
If the prices of the respective equity instruments had WMIEATEZSBEEBRE L
been increased/decreased by one percentage point and F/TR—EESE BH
all other variables are held constant, the post-tax loss of Rl AR EEHHTE - B
the Group for the year ended 31st March 2009 would AEEBHE-_ZTZNF=HA
increase/decrease by nil (2008: post-tax profit increase/ —+t—HILEFEREEAE
decrease by HK$162,000) as a result of the changes in B RO BEE(ZEE
fair value of investments at fair value through profit or JVEE - Bi& w3 a0, 8 7
loss. % 162,0007C) - UL JI KA 1R
HIEEANBEREBZEEZ
N EEBFTE -
(b) Credit risk (b)) FERE
Principal financial assets consist of available-for-sale TEUKEERBREAGRLE 2K
investments, debtors, investments at fair value through profit & ERER RERREAAE
or loss, cash and cash equivalents and amount due from an REZIEE HeRESZEWIA
associate. R pE M — s & A B R K o
Under the ongoing financial crisis, debtors of the Group EeRTEFENBRLT A&
may be affected by the unfavourable economic conditions &% AT B A A Bk o K 8
and the lower liquidity situation which could in turn impact ReREXETE EMyEFS
their ability to repay the amounts owed. Deteriorating EEFTRFRIEREE S - EIF AL
operating conditions for debtors may also have an impact EARNEZEN AT HERERESR
on management's cash flow forecasts and assessment of the = TR K2 5T (i & WSO (B MR R EE A &2
impairment of receivables. To the extent that information is 2 -REMEBER  EEEERR
available, management has properly reflected revised estimates Bt EE RREARRIRESR
of expected future cash flows in their impairment assessments. B2 RIERTfhET -
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event MR ZEFREBTERENEER
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as AR SRERAMKEEZEE
at balance sheet dates in relation to each class of recognised AREBAS RN EERRAEE
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated BERSBZEEEZREE K
in the balance sheet. The Group reviews the recoverable SEYeEMSEENEBR S &
amount of each individual debt at each balance sheet date HH 2 U [EIREE - LARE R 3 A
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for WElREBIEL B2 RERIE ©
irrecoverable amounts.
Amount due from an associate is continuously monitored & U — R B & A B IR 5K 038 B R A
by assessing the credit quality of the counterparty, taking RE5BF2ERTER WREEG
into account its financial position, past experience and TSRO ~ 38 1 48 B K H b (5] 2= iy
other factors. Where necessary, impairment loss is made for THEEE WMAEEE @ 5770
estimated irrecoverable amounts. As at 31st March 2009, the Weml z fhst e BMAELRERE - 1
amount due from an associate is fully performing. —EENF=ZA=+—8 ElK—
Il & D RIMR KA KRB H

HAFBRBARAT -
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WNOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATEL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G5B M ORI B

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Investments, interests receivable and cash transactions are

limited to financial institutions or investment counterp

arties

with high credit quality and the Group does not expect any
significant counterparty risk. Moreover, credit limits are set for
individual counterparties and periodic reviews are conducted

to ensure that the limits are strictly followed.

The Group does not have a significant exposure to any

individual debtor or counterparty.

3

3.1

MEEREERE

Z N BUR ()

BEERBEE(E)
(b)) EERE(E)

ErEGREERERTRRIE
REXGHFETRE  BWRFE
EReXS MARBEBALES

RZRSEFRER - I X5 H
FHRAENEERE B

Thes]  BRBBEBTERRE -

7R £5 (B 8 A R R] 38 3L 2 UR IR 3R
R GHFREHAEKNER -

(¢) Liquidity risk (c) EBEZREEE
The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk AEBRNERFTHZ2REEE
management and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient ) - Al & JEEJZ | fgi 75 2 DA K Al (&)
cash equivalents, readily realisable marketable securities and AZERECHEPEEZERE A
to have committed short term and medium term credit lines HIEEE Z é{ﬁ mEEREENE
available. eMEZEEIL -
The Directors of the Company believe that the Group has RARAEERR AEEEESFSR
obtained sufficient committed and uncommitted general RZEAHE M AEHE —RIERITE
credit facilities from banks for working capital purposes. EmE - E2EEcRR -
The Group’s liquidity position and compliance with loan RAREREZYERANER &
covenants are monitored closely by the management of the EMHARAREBETERZLY) - TK
Company. The table below analyses the Group’s financial BEEERAESHNIN AR T A
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the ZEM A ﬁj\”ﬁ C DT AR B B
remaining period at balance sheet to the contractual maturity BB - TRIATKEREELHR
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual WIRIRERE °
undiscounted cash flows.
Total
Less than 12 25 Morethan  undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
FHRRE
HR-F -EWE ZZEE BBRE REAR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
BT BETR BETR BRI BRI
The Group rEE
At31st March 2009 RZ2ENF=A=1-H
Trade and other creditors B S ERIRER R E M ERIRR 131,591 - - - 131,591
Amount due to ultimate ﬂ‘%‘ﬁ%iﬁ"ﬂx
holding company NGILE N 230 - _ - 230
Bank borrowings RITER 6,721 20,962 872 557 29,12

7 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009



WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&6 M Ok I B

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 HRREEEBEEERBKE®
AND POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEERBEEE)

(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) EBZmBEE(E)

Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 Morethan  undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
FMRRS
PR—F —EmME “EhE BBRE MELE
HKS$000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BB BETT BETR BETT BETT
The Group ¥ S
At 315t March 2008 RZEENE=A=1—H
Trade and other creditors EOLE Ve L 32,801 - - - 32,801
Amount due to ultimate e &R
holding company NG 1,783 - - - 1,783
Amounts due to associates JEREE 2N B IR 2,616 - - - 2,616
Bank borrowings RITER 2,398 2,358 16,583 - 21,339
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 Morethan  undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
FnEES
SR-F -EmE “ERE BBLE RELR
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI BRI BRI BT BT
The Company b NG|
At31st March 2009 R=EENE=ZA=1-H
Other creditors H A TR 3K 95,333 - - - 95,333
Amount due to ultimate R &R R
holding company AL 201 - - - 201
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENGILES 8,369 - - - 8,369
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 Morethan  undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
AR
PR—F —EmME “ERF etk chikad RELE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BETT BRI BETT BT
The Company AN
At 31st March 2008 RZBENF=A=+—H
Other creditors H AR5 21,558 - = = 21,558
Amount due to ultimate R &R R
holding company AL 955 - - - 955
Amounts due to subsidiaries NG S 2,291 - - - 2,291

HEZGERARAT
=TT FER



WNOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATEL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
returns for shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes of economic conditions or corporate needs.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total equity and bank
borrowings.

The Group is in net cash position as at 31st March 2009 and 2008
taking into account bank borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and
structured deposits.

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

(i)  Estimated impairment of goodwill and trademarks
The Group tests annually whether goodwill and trademarks
have suffered any impairment. The recoverable amounts of
CGUs have been determined based on their fair value less costs
to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates (note
19).

Impairment loss of HK$49,750,000 and HK$68,950,000 on
goodwill allocated to Group's branded coffee shops business
and restaurants and bars businesses were made during the year
respectively.

If the gross margin used in the post-tax cash flow projections
for the Group's branded coffee shops business and restaurants
and bars businesses had been 1% lower than management’s
estimates as at 31st March 2009, the Group would have
recognised a further impairment loss on goodwill allocated to
them by HK$15,683,000 and HK$20,112,000 respectively.

If the estimated post-tax discount rate applied to the
discounted cash flow projections for the Group's branded
coffee shops business and restaurants and bars businesses
had been 1% higher than management’s estimates, the Group
would have recognised a further impairment loss on goodwill
allocated to them by HK$8,209,000 and HK$9,072,000
respectively.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&6 M Ok I B

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 SR ET R A E @
IUDGEMENTS (continued)
(i) Estimated useful lives of intangible assets (other than (i) EHEEFEE(EERIMN) 2TFEH
goodwill) FH
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful AEE EEEETEFEE(H
lives and consequent related amortisation rate (if any) for its E R HN) Z = EJr G fﬁ Hﬂ A & A
intangible assets (other than goodwill). These estimates are AR EEE(NE) - Z&(GEt
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives DRBERTEZAIELRELE
of comparable intangible assets in related industries. Actual EERAFEREH 7 BEKSM
economic life may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic YEH - BRRAL T Hin] g B {h 5T 2
review could result in a change in amortisable lives and Al £ A F H N E o E B B ATk
consequently increase or decrease in amortisation expenses in $HF BRVEH B E) o DABUE NS R
future periods. ANREAE 2 #HF > -
(iii) Estimated fair value of available-for-sale investments (i) AFATHEEZRENDAAE
In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar AREU A EEMNREEERT
available-for-sale investments, the Group determines the %—J FRZB/TEE  HAEERE
fair values by using valuation technique which is based on ZERFE 2 TRER (BIETH| T
information from a variety of sources, including the latest ’E ZEREMN KM BEER) - fh
financial information of the available-for-sale investments. ﬁ RTEE A HEHE ZREN AR
5 REVENUE 5 W@
2009 2008
—EZhF —ZEENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Revenue represents amount WHIERBE R Z
received and receivable from: B K e
Continuing operations FFER ‘%‘ E 3
Sale of food and beverages BHEHE ) 294,529 285,184
Sale of coffee machines 0N B 4 8 &5 5,136 6,188
Service income Bz 75 U A 9,831 7,544
Leasing of coffee machines DJJU DJF HHE 610 118
Franchise income T‘Zﬁ PN 1,000 —
Interest income from investments E/\ TEI SIRIBAARBERELZ
at fair value through profit or loss LERF B WA 6,466 12,408
317,572 311,442
Discontinued operations 3'5 R 5]'%
Sale of computer and business machines B X 74 %*ﬁ% 2IHE - 30,604
Provision of maintenance services }E f \'f% Bk - 4,549
Leasing of equipment RBHEE - 134
- 35,287
317,572 346,729

AEBIZEBRIBE ST 2 Wam 5T H
FIFA I 5E33 ©

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by business and geographical
segments is set out in note 33.

HAEZHERERAR 75
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G5B M ORI B

6 OTHER EXPENSES, NET

6 HMpx FH8

2009 2008
—EENF ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT
Continuing operations BFEKSEXK
(Loss)/gain on investments at fair value ~ RIBmIRIE AR BEEEZ
through profit or loss, net REN(BB), W - F8
— Realised —B &3 (21,967) 1,120
— Unrealised —REH (5,709) (7,195)
Interest income on amount JE U — AT BEe 2 A RIIR FR 2
due from an associate PSRN 229 165
Interest income on deposits FHiEe RFERNRIELZ
and prepayments PSRN 1,869 -
Gross rental income of HK$456,000 VI TH & 42U A 7B B 456,000 7T
(2008: HK$342,000) from a property (ZZZ)\4F : B8 342,0007T)
less direct operating expenses BEEKEER 451 316
Others H A 280 131
(24,847) (5,463)
Discontinued operations FIFELEET
Gross rental income of Nil YEE S RWAT
(2008: HK$95,000) from properties (ZZZ)\F : B8 95,0007T)
less direct operating expenses BEEKLLER - 64
(24,847) (5,399)
7  OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7  Hp(&B) i FHE
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
BREEXK FREBERY ag
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEENE ZTT\FE ZBEAE —ZT\F ZBBAE _TT)\E
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
AETr A¥Tn BETR BT A¥Tn  AETrx
Impairment loss on available- ARLE s RE
for-sale investments MRESE (4,222) (835) - - (4,222) (835)
Provision for impairment FEIIR SR
of receivables BE - = - (121) - (121)
Write off of other receivables A R - (178) - = - (178)
Exchange gains, net S Cale s 114 1,012 - 209 114 1,01
Impairment loss on property, EN: STV
plant and equipment REBE (15,529) (3,356) - = (15,529) (3,356)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 19) BBz mERE (ML) (118,700) - - = (118,700) -
(Decrease)/increase in fair value RENEZ
of an investment property (note 15) RNAECHD),/#M(HES) (3,100) 2,000 - = (3,100) 2,000
Reversal of accruals ROBRER
and other payables REMERIRR - 1,860 - = - 1,860
Unrealised gain on derivative ITEHBIAZ
financial instruments RERYH - = - 279 - 279
(141,437) 503 - 367 (14143) §70

7 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009



WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS), NET

&6 M Ok I B

8 HBBA(EBR) FHE

Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
BRELXE FRELERY L
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZBENE “ZT\F ZREAF —TTN\F ZBBRAE _TI)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBTn BRI A%Tr E¥Tr  BETR  B%TR
Interest income from bank deposits BAERFSHA 1,247 1,431 - 31 1,247 1,462
Less: Interest on bank W RITE R R
borrowings and overdrafts BYZFE (451) (2,014) - (91) (451) (2,105)
796 (583) - (60) 796 (643)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9 BREA (EE) SEFR
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
BRELXE FRELERY g
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZBENFE “TT\F ZREAF —TTN\F ZBBRAE _TI)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BBTn BT A%Tn E¥Tn  BETR  BETR
(Loss)/profit before taxation has BEta (BR)/ &
been arrived at after charging/ Bk (Gt A)
(crediting) the following: THEHE :
Auditors’ remuneration 2k 886 1,010 - - 886 1,010
Depreciation on property, nE - BE R
plant and equipment RENE 22,096 21,987 - 378 22,096 22,365
Net loss on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment & BIERE 709 3,600 - = 709 3,600
Operating lease payments in respect BEUNE BT
of leasing of premises under ERRX
— minimum lease payments ~REREFT 87,397 70,270 - 848 87,397 71,118
- contingent rent ik 6,184 8,623 - - 6,184 8,623
Staff costs (note) B TR () 72,928 67,451 - 5,643 72,928 73,094
Management fee ERE 800 800 - - 800 800
Provision for/(write back of provision for) ~ &/ (BE &) F &
inventories to net realisable value ZAERFE 856 = - (2,413) 856 (2,413)

Note: Details of directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note 34. Mt - EFMEEFABIRX @ sHERMEE34%E -
B T 7 X 888 B 5 R K8 A5 & 3K EE (40
BRE R ) B #3,366,000T (ZEF N\ 5 :
78 1 3,091,000 7T ) °

Included in staff costs is an amount of HK$3,366,000 (2008: HK$3,091,000) in
respect of contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes, net
of forfeited contributions.

EAFDRBARAT o
—EENEER
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10 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES

10 FREH(ER) FxX

Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
BRELXE FRELERY aE
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZBENE “TT\F ZRBEAF —TTN\F ZBBRAE _TT)\F
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000
ABTn BRI A¥Tr E¥Tn  BETR  BETR
Current tax BEHE
Hong Kong BB 1,351 2,539 - - 1,351 2,539
Under/(over)-provision BREEETR/
in prior years (%) &M 21 (200) - - 21 (200)
1,572 2,339 - - 1,572 2,339
Deferred tax BERE
Origination and reversal of ERftzRy
temporary differences EEREE (2,892) 764 - = (2,892) 764
Impact of change in Hong Kong BRNGHEE
profits tax rate A (1,270) - - - (1,270) -
(4,162) 764 - = (4,162) 764
(2,590) 3,103 - - (2,590) 3,103

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2008:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits after offsetting losses
brought forward of each individual company.

On 26th June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the
revenue bill 2008 which included the reduction in corporate tax rate
by 1% from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009.

Opverseas taxation including Singapore and Mainland China taxation
is calculated based on the rates applicable in the relevant jurisdiction

on the estimated assessable profits.

Details of deferred tax are disclosed in note 31.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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10

11

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES (continued) 10 FAIB88GER) BX @
The income tax (credit)/expenses for the year can be reconciled to AREFZFHE (KR )/F'fﬁ X EAR F‘; e Uk
the (loss)/profit before taxation per consolidated income statement = 7% Hll 7~ Z B & AT (B 1) o8 A iR
as follows: N
2009 2008
—EBENF ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT
(Loss)/profit before taxation from FEIS BT
continuing operations BEL AT (E518), O F (161,360) 18,460
Adjust for: Share of results of associates FHE : PTEE AR EE (11,229) (9,631)
(172,589) 8,829
Tax at the domestic income tax rate A ET 1S %R #16.5% T H 2
of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) BIBE(ZFT)\F : 17.5%) (28,477) 1,545
Effect of different tax rates of REMENEE ﬁ RS
subsidiaries operating in L) WNCIPANE
other jurisdictions MR & (1,189) (2,840)
Remeasurement of deferred tax BT ERERIE
— change in Hong Kong —BENEH
profits tax rate R B E) (1,270) =
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR 2 2 R TE 57 g& 24,993 1,957
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARTRA Z 5 ﬁ% (1,677) (3,216)
Tax effect of current year’s tax NEEZRERLZ ﬁi’%% Tﬁ? Z
losses not recognised Mg E 5,163 5,895
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses 2 ABEE ﬂi RIS EE 2
not previously recognised s (354) (38)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFETR/(HEE)EBE 221 (200)
Tax (credit)/expenses for the year REEHEESR) X (2,590) 3,103
DIVIDENDS 11 RE
2009 2008
ZEBhF —ZET)N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BT
Interim dividend of HK1.0 cent BIR" EP IR B B R 1.0 7L
(2008: HK3.0 cents) per share, paid —ZEZT )\¢ 3.0781l) 2,155 6,465
Final dividend of HK1.0 cent R R B IR B AR 1.0 AL
(2008: HK7.0 cents) per share, proposed (= ZZ \4F : 7.0/81L) 2,156 15,089
4,311 21,554
A final dividend of HK1.0 cent per share, totalling HK$2,156,000 RAAREFEZARERPREFTR1OE
has been proposed by the Directors of the Company and is subject il & B8 2,156,000 7T + BT R R E#
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General AR 2 KREA ¢ j( LAEEE - % E
Meeting. The amount will be reflected as an appropriation of HEBREBEZE=F— g F E ﬁ =+—H
retained profits for the year ending 31st March 2010. IEFEARMBRERNZ DK

HAEZHERERAR 79
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12

13

in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BER(BE) B
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/ 5 Q K(EER) B ZTET L‘/(—Fﬁlj
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company as set out below ﬁﬁ /NG Y H BEAEEERE), &
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during FBRAFRNBE BT ERK Z INEFHH
the year of 215,540,017 shares (2008: 212,410,465 shares). 215,540,017 IR (=TT )\ F : 212,410,465 %)

g,

2009 2008
—gBRE -TINH
HK$’000 HK$’000
ik i P BETTT
Continuing operations BB EER (158,770) 15,357
Discontinued operations B ET - 10,660
(158,770) 26,017
As there was no dilutive potential share, diluted (loss)/earnings per =] E:\;\EE EBRTEEER D REFERIE
share from continuing operations and discontinued operations equal ALK % XB2E B A #55 ( JEE_TE )/ 27
the basic (loss)/earnings per share from continuing operations and 7 Bl P 2R Q FENEFBREER 2

discontinued operations respectively. BREAN(EE) B -
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 13 AABRERFE ARG (BB

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY iy il
Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with ?ir AR R & B % & ?E Ay VNI E
i
(

HK$80,907,000 (2008: Profit of HK$67,241,000).

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

T A

14 3 ?% ,..a

AI
3 I
%

&6 M Ok I B

15
On 12th March 2007, the Company entered into an agreement ARAR_FF t F=RA+= BRI —
to dispose of the Group’s operations relating to computer and ) T;J,g * ' ﬁ EAEEZEM & & afl i &t
information communication technology (the “Disposal”). The B *E MEF(ZHE]D ZHBEER
Disposal was completed on 2nd May 2007. —EE+FRAZHREK
The results and cash flows of the discontinued operations included MAZENEREFEERSRERANLZ
in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated cash flow EEFE ,%& BEBREELREESRERY
statement are set out below: R
2009 2008
—EEAFE ZEZTNF
HK$°000 HK$000
BET T BT T
Revenue Il ﬁTi ‘ - 35,287
Cost of sales $H & KA - (30,996)
Gross profit E 7 - - 4,291
Other income, net N N = L) - 64
Other gains, net H AW as - i ] - 367
Selling and distribution costs & M ARG A - (4,561)
Administrative expenses THRAX - (101)
Operating profit megmsy - 60
Finance income B UL A - 31
Finance costs WBER - (91)
Finance costs, net MEM ¥R - (60)
Profit before taxation &%%%ﬁﬁié%U - -
Income tax expenses FRi5Fi 2 - -
Gain on disposal of tH % ?E%/ = s
discontinued operations B W - 10,660
Profit for the year from REEFBELEEBZ
discontinued operations RF Z 5 F — 10,660
Net cash outflow from KBRS ﬁ%z
operating activities B & - (3,739)
Net cash outflow from KRB &L, S ?F%ZZ
investing activities B mbF8 - (458)
Net cash outflow from REFE %ﬁ% Z
financing activities b2 Ay -2 - (9,000)
Net cash outflow from PNEE ST ,EE BEBZ
discontinued operations & F - (13,197)
HAZhERERATR

=TT FER 81
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15 REYXE
The Group NE
HK$’000
BT T
At 1st April 2007 RZEZTLFHH—H =
Additions NE 7,800
Increase in fair value (note 7) N EE (M EE7) 2,000
At 31st March 2008 R_ZEZENF=ZA=+—H 9,800
Decrease in fair value (note 7) N ERD (HE7) (3,100)
Transfer to property, plant and HEYE  RE
equipment (note 16) K& (M 5T 16) (1,550)
Transfer to prepaid lease EEENMEERE
payments (note 17) (FtsE17) (5,150)
At 31st March 2009 —EENF=HA=1+—H -
The Group’s investment property is located in Hong Kong and is AEER 7 REMEMLE AR+ F
held under medium-term lease of 50 years. RERFR AR o
The fair value of the Group’s investment property as at the date of RE T% % MEREREB Hﬂg VD TE ’
transfer has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on J3 UiSE SRR S-S SN kIS il
that date by Knight Frank Petty Limited, an independent qualified 17 ﬁ R Z\\ A E’Q\E‘:'-? E!/Fﬁ EZ hERKE2R
professional valuer, with reference to market evidence of transaction BUYEZRIEBEESL -

prices for similar properties.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% BERZE
The Group NE
Store machine, Furniture,
leasehold fixtures, office
improvement equipment
and and motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
ERRES B
HENEEE %E WAZ
B k#E  RERAE “m
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFR  EETR  AETn  #EIx
Cost X
At 1st April 2007 RZZEZLFNA—H - 76,058 2,631 78,689
Exchange realignment B 5 R = 2,317 = 2,317
Additions NE - 27,903 699 28,602
Disposal/write off HE /R - (10,949) (70) (11,019)
At 31st March 2008 A\_TTNF=A=1+—H - 95,329 3,260 98,589
Exchange realignment E PL Eﬂ AR - (817) - (817)
Additions /JT‘\E - 13,619 495 14,114
Step-up acquisition of interest in an BE-HRERA
associate (note 32) ﬁ& = (MizE32) 2,160 46,168 - 48,328
Disposal/write off HE /A - (14,930) - (14,930)
Transfer from investment property (note 15) B EmE(HELs) 1,550 - - 1,550
At 315t March 2009 RZZEZNE=A=+—H 3,710 139,369 3,755 146,834
Accumulated depreciation and impairment & ﬁi’ ?ﬁ § & HE
At st April 2007 N\ZZZ+ENA[—H = 19,112 687 19,799
Exchange realignment E AR - 1,111 - 1,111
Charge for the year FERNE - 21,132 855 21,987
Impairment loss recognised ERAREESE = 3,356 = 3,356
Disposal/write off HE /s - (7,121) 9) (7,130)
At 31st March 2008 RZZEZENF=A=1—H - 37,590 1,533 39,123
Exchange realignment fEE i, 55 5 - (566) - (566)
Charge for the year TERHE - 21,028 1,068 22,096
Impairment loss recognised E} ﬁ&ﬁ?\ REEE - 15,529 - 15,529
Disposal/write off HE /M - (12,734) - (12,734)
At 315t March 2009 RZEENF=RA=+—H - 60,847 2,601 63,448
Carrying amount & E fﬁ
At 31st March 2009 \_ZTNF=A=1—H 3,710 78,522 1,154 83,386
At 31st March 2008 RZZEZENF=A=T—H = 57,739 1,727 59,466
Note: B aE -
The Group had pledged a building with carrying amounts of HK$2,160,000 (2008: Nil) A& EE K IR EE A S $2,160,0007T 2 & F
to secure general banking facilities (note 28). (ZZETNF: E)ER—RBITEEER(HIE28) -

HLFBRRARAT g3
—EENEER
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ArT (&) ,ﬂﬂ%ﬂi?ﬂﬁ nf
17 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. FEAEERIE
The Group NE
The movements in the prepaid lease payments during the year are RAFE  BNEERBZ2EFH oW
analysed as follows: T
HK$’000
BT
At 1st April 2008 R=ZZZNFMHA—H -
Step-up acquisition of interest in an HHE—EEE QT2
associate (note 32) 7 7 ( MoaE32) 1,640
Transfer from investment EHIGEYE
property (note 15) (B 15) 5,150
At 31st March 2009 RZEZTNF=A=1+—8H 6,790

18

(a)

The prepaid lease payments are for lease located in Hong Kong which
are held under medium-term.

The Group had pledged its leasehold land with carrying values of

BANEEFRANARETHHEOERE
FREZHE-

$;‘% 2 % Ik E & & 78 % 1,640,000 7T

HK$1,640,000 (2008: Nil) to secure general banking facilities (note (Z2EZENF - E)2HELHIERE—RK
28). ST B 8 (B 3 28) -
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 Fri&ME AR 2 s
The Company AAF
Interests in subsidiaries (a) FIEMBARZREZ=
2009 2008
—2BRE T \F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost JELETARMD BZEX PN 204,420 1,996
Amounts due from subsidiaries N ENGILEE N 390,732 560,703
Less: Provision for impairment B R ER
(note 18(c)) (MEEE18(c)) (169,868) (71,799)
425,284 490,900
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and KB ARERRAERB LR E
have no pre-determined repayment terms. I AR EEEGFRK -
The amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in the following JRE BT /B8 2 BN IRFRIA T 5 E ¥ R AL

currencies:

2009 2008

—BBRAF —ET)N\F

HK$000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Hong Kong dollar Vi 338,074 513,859

Singapore dollar n i)}i 7T 48,190 43,122

Renminbi AR% 4,468 3,722

390,732 560,703

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March 2009 FBAR_ZETNF=-A=+t—HZXZ
are set out in note 42. LR)--pN EZE?%%YECWEQ °

8 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (

Amounts due from subsidiaries

continued)

&6 M Ok I B

18 FrH{EMiEB A B X ()
(b) FEUREHE D TR

2009 2008

—EENF —EENE

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT

Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U B 8 X B IR X 30,969 7,585
Less: Provision for impairment O EREE

(note 18(c)) (P EE 18(c)) (398) (20)
30,571 7,565

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

are repayable on demand.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in Hong Kong

dollar. The carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

Movement of impairment loss

J%H&ZWJ%’AEEE? ARBEEREREE X

(0 REBRZH

2009 2008

—BBRAF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BETT

At 1st April REA—H 71,819 182,154
Provision for impairment FRRERE

during the year 101,829 35,435
Write back of provision VERIEEE YR El

for impairment (3,382) (145,770)
At 31st March R=A=+—H 170,266 71,819

Amounts due to subsidiaries

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and are

repayable on demand.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are denominated in Hong Kong

dollar. The carrying amounts approximate their fair value.

= :
fﬁW_JJfAJT_Ef AREEAREE A

=
EEHWEQEIPE%LA/%%E“F H ik

HAEZHERERAR 85
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19 GOODWILL AND TRADEMARKS

19 BEREHEZ

The Group NE
Goodwill Trademarks Total
mE 5k e
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT
At 1st April 2007 and 2008 RZBETLER
—EFNFMA—H 84,010 108,000 192,010
Step-up acquisition of interest s el Vi RN o
in an associate (note 32) (FtsE32) 118,364 10,337 128,701
Transfer from interests in HAMENR 2R
associates (note 20) (B 20) 53,179 - 53,179
255,553 118,337 373,890
Impairment loss recognised ERRREERE
(note 7) (F5E7) (118,700) - (118,700)
At 31st March 2009 RZZEZAF=A=+—H 136,853 118,337 255,190

The trademarks were purchased as part of a business combination.
HK$108,000,000 is related to the branded coffee shops business while

HK$10,337,000 is related to restaurants and bars businesses.

The trademark of branded coffee shops is considered by the
management of the Group as having indefinite useful lives. The
trademark will not be amortised until its useful lives are determined
to be finite upon reassessment of its useful lives annually by the
management. The Directors are of the opinion that the upkeep of the
trademark of branded coffee shops business is at minimal cost and
the Group would renew the trademark continuously. Various studies
have been performed by management of the Group, which supports
that there is no foreseeable time limit to the period over which the
branded coffee shops are expected to generate cash flows for the

Group.

The trademarks of restaurants and bars businesses are considered by

the management of the Group as having a finite life of 15 years.

These trademarks will be tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
Particulars of impairment testing are disclosed in note 4(i) and

below.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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GOODWILL AND TRADEMARKS (continued) 19 BEREE®

Impairment tests for goodwill and trademarks BERBEZRENR

Goodwill of HK$84,010,000 before impairment and trademark of R (B A 7S # 84,010,000 7T 2 AR KB K&
HK$108,000,000 are allocated to the Group’s branded coffee shops 108 000,000T Z EREE O EREE 2
business. The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on oA HE Mk JE 575 o {51 A U O] 8158 Th %
fair value less costs to sell. These calculations use post-tax cash flow HERARBEREEXNRETE - B ZTE
projections based on financial budgets approved by management FEREEZ %’? Z— FHIBTIETEE 2 &
covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period BEESR %i‘ 8 —FREFRFZIR
are extrapolated using a 2% growth rate per annum up to the fifth EmELRE /Ej FoOURWERNEESRE
year and zero growth rate per annum from the sixth year to fifteen +THFATEER FR X759 NEFF
year, gross margin of 75% and a discount rate of 11% per annum. BEIR R 119% MHEHE o

Goodwill of HK$171,543,000 before impairment and trademark el (B AT 78 %5 171,543,000 7T 2 B 2 KB 1
of HK$10,337,000 are allocated to the Group’s restaurants and 10 337,000 CZ BMIZEWR O EAEE 2
bars businesses. The estimated recoverable amount is determined & E“F KB Im 2E 7% o (5t A U ] 58 T 3%
based on fair value less costs to sell. These calculations use post- ERNAEREEXRAEE - Bl ZtHE
tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by CREREMZ . —FHMBEZE 2B
management covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the one- BIESRETER —FREEFERAF2H
year period are extrapolated using a 2% growth rate per annum up SREEREXRA 2% RWEBEREFEEE
to the fifth year and zero growth rate per annum from the sixth year THRFAZTHERER EFR779% N EFF
to fifteen year, gross margin of 77% and a discount rate of 11% per A5 3R 3 119 M #E

annum.

Management determined budgeted growth rate and gross margin BEENRBAEENTSEHEERE
based on past performance and market expectation. The discount ST ERNEFE  MATFER 8RR
rates used are post-tax and reflect specific risks relating to these REREZFIE BRBZEEBE 2R
businesses. BEkE

As a result of the impairment tests performed, impairment loss of AREETRENR  PEE5E 2 M
HK$49,750,000 and HK$68,950,000 were made on the goodwill RO BEE A REE &E B2
allocated to the Group's branded coffee shops business and 25 5 {’Eﬁjﬂ@)@ﬂg /%%49 750,000 7T M2
restaurants and bars businesses respectively. Management is of the 75 68,950,0007T - BEIEERE ' B Eg B
view that such impairment has resulted from the global economic BERZIKE /S E R - kM Ir &
downturn. No class of asset other than goodwill was impaired. The HMERNEERME - BEFTAZESS
loss has been included in other loss in these consolidated financial BIfS SRR 2 EfhE54E -

statements.

HLFDRBARAT g
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20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20 FHEBEE DR Z R
(a) Interests in associates (a) FTEEEZEATZ2ER
The Group The Company
rEE NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBAE T N\F ZEBEAF _—TITN\EF
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETR AETT BETT BETT
At 1st April RmA— 77,963 62,092 67,377 61,137
Adjustment arising from finalisation EERE :51 BEEZ
of purchase consideration Bk - 6,240 - 6,240
Share of results Fﬁ e 11,229 9,631 - -
Step-up acquisition of interest in an el ) N
associate (note 32) R (f7E32) 1,079 - - -
Dividend B E (17,485) - - -
Eliminated on business combination EI5A GHE (18,528) - (67,377) -
Transfer to goodwill (note 19) BEEE (MFF19) (53,179) - - -
At 31st March W=A=1+—H 1,079 77,963 - 67,377
On 31st March 2009, the Group acquired the remaining 51% of the 712:%62 NF=ZA=1+—8 A%£ERH 5%1
issued share capital of its associated company, SEL from Sinochina 7% =73 Sinochina Pacific Limited 4 & ELE
Pacific Limited, an independent third party. After the acquisition, BN FISELER N519% 2 B FITHA © I Eﬁ
SEL became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. & SELRRASKEEENBAR -
Interests in associates as at 31st March 2009 include goodwill of )ﬁ — j]i F=ZA=1+_—8" Ao
HK$448,000 (2008: HK$53,179,000). EQHZEE %ﬁ@%%MwwE
(Z2ENF B M53N9w0m)
The Group’s interest in its principal associate, which is unlisted, is as AEERHEERIF LB E QR 28
follows: LU
Country of % Interest
Name incorporation Assets  Liabilities ~ Revenue Profit held  Principal activities
‘ ‘ L
£ FayAv=TE BE aff 6 wH 2BSk  EEEH
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT E¥Tr BE®TR EETR
2009 —FTNF
Orchid International Limited Hong Kong 2,124 862 8,697 1,172 50  Operatinga bar
BB 2EBEE
2008 —TT)\EF
Sinochina Enterprises British Virgin Islands 100,407 49,827 229,188 19,655 49 Investment holding
Limited (“SEL”) EBERULEHE in operations of

8 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2009
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20 PRGEEE D E 2
Amount due from an associate (b) FEW—EEEZE QTR
As at 31st March 2009, amount due from an associate is unsecured, RZZEZENF=A=+—H EK—H
interest-free and repayable on demand. BENRRASELR 2ERARE
KIEE o
As at 31st March 2008, the amount due from an associate was R-ZZEZENF=A=+—H  EWK - fEl
unsecured, interest bearing at Hongkong and Shanghai Banking i N AR AERENIZES EBE
Corporation Limited Prime Rate per annum plus 100 basis point BIRITHAR A Al E BB E FIZ 0100 {E
and was repayable by six semi-annual instalments with the first BEAE  BoABENR  BEFEE—
instalment due on 21st September 2008. R-MEBARZZEENFALA=T—H
B -
The amount due from an associate is denominated in Hong Kong FEY —EEE & AR IR A BB BB -
dollar. The carrying amount approximates its fair value. HiFEBEEEQARBERE °
Amounts due to associates (c) FEFEE QTR
As at 31st March 2008, the amounts due to associates were RZEZENF=ZA=+—8 BB
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. NAEFABEEAREE  WEREXK
RFEE -
The amounts due to associates were denominated in Hong Kong R E R ARRIABE SEN - HIR
dollar. The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. HESEE AR EES °
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21 AHHEZRE
The Group &
Available-for-sale investments as at 31st March comprise: R=ZA=+—HU#tEE2RERE
2009 2008
—EBENF e YANES
HK$000 _HK$'000
BT T BT T
Unlisted equity securities, at cost less F LM BAFES - WA
impairment : R RE . ) 215 662
Investment in a venture capital fund, REIREEZRE  BAR
at fair value BFtE 6,978 18,761
7,193 19,423
Available-for-sale investments are denominated in the following AEEE ZRE AT B BB
currencies:
2009 2008
—EEAEF ZEENF
HK$°000 _HK$°000
BETT BET T
Hong Kong dollar ok 215 662
US dollar ET 6,978 18,761
7,193 19,423

HLFBRRABRAT g
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22 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22 RERKREAARBEEZRE
PROFIT OR LOSS
Investments at fair value through profit or loss as at 31st March R=A=1+—H "EBFERIZAAERER
comprise: BZEREBE
The Group The Company
rE KAH
2009 2008 2009 2008
—REAE -TT)\F —BRRE -TINF
HK$’0(E) X HK$’0@ HK$’0(E) . H,K$)0®
BETT BT BETRT BT
Listed investments: Naliid- i )
— debt securities, listed overseas —BREE BN ET 20,156 23,914 - =
— equity securities, listed in —BAFESH  BELD
Hong Kong - 16,199 - =
20,156 40,113 - -
Unlisted investments: FEEMIR ﬁ
— debt securities — (B E - 43,204 - -
— structured deposits — R T? = - 14,884 - 14,884
— mutual funds —-5HEES 2,668 - - -
2,668 58,088 - 14,884
—22824 R _
Analysed for reporting purposes: ERERZ 2
Non-current assets ER @J BE - 14,884 - 14,884
Current assets mBEE 22,824 83,317 - =
22,824 98,201 - 14,884
The fair values of the listed investments are determined based on the i T WEZARBTIZAA 5:& Z Fﬁ FIT %
quoted market bid price available on the relevant exchanges and the ZMSEBMEF MIFLTRELZ
unlisted investments are determined by reference to quoted prices REHEECREECREMETE -
from the relevant financial institutions.
The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or ingia! ﬁTi'pE fﬂ N fE Tﬁ BRI 2 R E WRE A A
loss are denominated in the following currencies: TIEEREM
The Group The Company
rE NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF —TTN\F ZBERE ZZTTNF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BT AT BT BB T T
Hong Kong dollar g - 16,199 - -
US dollar ETT 22,824 82,002 - 14,884
22,824 98,201 — 14,884

9 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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&6 M IR I A
INVENTORIES 23 FE
The Group wE
2009 2008
—BBAE -TT)\&
HK$’000 HK$’OOO
BETT BETT
Food and beverages ZER 9,313 8,229
Consumable stores FEA R 2,420 392
11,733 8,621
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost T—?T— BERADHER 7% £ M IE BEREE
of sales amounted to HK$80,415,000 (2008: HK$77,038,000). BN A 2 17 B PR R A 78 180,415,000 7T
(ZZ2ZN\F : B¥77,038,0007T) °
DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 24 BWIR - FHEERENARE
The Group The Company
Y-S FRH
2009 2008 2009 2008
—2BAF -TI\F -BBAE —ITI)\S
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT AETT BETT BETT
Trade debtors 5 RUIR R 4,572 1,551 - -
Less: Provision for impairment R ERE - (51) - -
4,572 1,500 - =
Other debtors, deposits and H ﬁﬁﬁ‘?”ﬂl R - i
prepayments e MIENFIE 59,293 45,776 1,859 223

63,865 47,276 1,859 223

Analysed for reporting purposes: fEREREZ DM
Non-current assets ER @J BE 24,461 24,395 - -
Current assets MENE EE 39,404 22,881 1,859 223

63,865 47,276 1,859 223

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in AEBEUREROLEH 2 RPEH® A

each of its core businesses. The average credit period granted to trade Rz EE & % o BRUNBEE 2 %& RIHE

debtors is 30 days except for sales of food and beverages at coffee ZURSEHII GTEHEFZFH
shops which are mainly on cash basis. EEBR30K -

The ageing analysis of trade debtors at the balance sheet date is as NEEB - B 5 EKIRR ZIRE D740

follows: iy
The Group
&

2009 2008

—BBRAF —EENF

HK$000 HK$'000

BET T BT

0-60 days 0—60:K 3,417 1,288

61-90 days 61—90K 521 49

Over 90 days 180 90 K 634 163

4,572 1,500

HLFBRRARAT g
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24 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) 24 FEURIRTR ~ FHIRERENTE @)
At 31st March 2009, trade debtors of HK$3,298,000 (2008: R-FEENF=RA=+—H %%
HK$1,055,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to 3,298,000 7T ( — & Z J\ 5 : 7 % 1,055,000
individuals or companies for whom there is no recent history of o) 28 5 EIE I E 2 BB & RBE °
default. AR EEFARARER MEFLR

B KD ER
The Group
REE
2009 2008
—2ENF —ET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
Less than 60 days past due 8 B3 D7 60 B 2,484 870
61-90 days past due #HEI61 290 A 331 156
Over 90 days past due @ Ef90 B A | 483 29
3,298 1,055
Trade debtors’ balances that are neither past due nor impaired WARBEAITNARBE B 5 RKIRKEATE
mainly relate to individuals or companies that have been the Group’s FEHRBMAZAGEH  BREHLEELE
customers for more than six months with no history of default in the BRENEAEBETRENCHE LT
past. B e

At 31st March 2009, gross trade debtors’ balances totalling nil (2008: RZZEZENF=ZA=+—H BFEK
HK$51,000) were individually determined to be impaired, which IRRBZEIT(ZZZT/)\F : ¥ 51,0007T)
related to customers that were in financial difficulties. Consequently, L BEREERNEE RBE - BEEFH
specific provision for impairment of nil (2008: HK$51,000) was BRECEFBR Al REEBRE
recognised as at the balance sheet date. The Group does not hold any RE(ZZZ NG : BHES51,0007T) 2 FF
collateral over these balances. The movements in the provision for ARERE AEBERZZEHRESR

impairment during the year are as follows: B m o MEBERNFANZEBHNT

The Group
REME

2009 2008
—EENF —ET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEETT BETT
At 1st April mEHA—A 51 51
Uncollectible amounts written off i £5 S BT Yo [B] & 58 (51) =
At 31st March R=A=+—H~ - 51

The carrying amounts of trade debtors are denominated in the
following currencies:

BZENRRZ REESE TIIEERE

I :

The Group
&

2009 2008
—gBhE —TT)\F
HK$°000 _HK$'000
BETT BT T
Hong Kong dollar B B 5 4,562 1,390
Other currencies Hah gk 10 110
4,572 1,500

9 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&6 BB R M AT
DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) 24 FEURIRSR ~ 17 R & R TIE (5)
The carrying amounts of other debtors and deposits are HERIRRARFLHIZS 2REER T
denominated in the following currencies: P E¥ERELL
The Group
S
2009 2008
—EENF —ZET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT
Hong Kong dollar B 43,497 26,256
US dollar X7 245 2,783
Singapore dollar ST A0 T 2,748 4,077
Renminbi AR #E 811 3,254
47,301 36,370
The carrying amounts of debtors, deposits and prepayments JEWIRR P RS RIEN KIBZIRE
approximate their fair values. BERERNAERES -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 RERBREEEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held, short-term bank RekBeEBEYREMELE S R
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and cash HREARR /5 = B A sk AR 2 2 HRER 1T 7 K
placed with financial institutions. RERMBREPOZES -
The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair values. ZEEEZRAERAERAREEE
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are denominated fﬁ £ & ReEBYM2IREBENATIER
in the following currencies: REBAL
The Group The Company
AEH AR
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEEAE ZZETN\F ZBEAE —IZTTN\HF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR AETT BET T BETT
Hong Kong dollar i 54,829 14,387 4,830 2,089
US dollar SETT 115,918 180,502 105,235 119
Renminbi AR 1,122 3,314 - -
Singapore dollar 03K 7T 1,710 1,785 - -
Other currencies Hith 5 21 23 21 23
173,600 200,011 110,086 2,231
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.7% 5 /Hﬁ ﬂi TERZER ﬁ’i =y i £30.7%
(2008: 2.5%) per annum, these deposits have an average maturity of (=% ETAY F 1 2.5%) aZ SR FH 3
15 days (2008: 2 days). ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ‘f’ﬂa(: ZNFE - MWA) -

HAEZHERERAR 93
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&6 BB R M AR
26 CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS 26 BEHRNR - FAREREAREHN
The Group The Company
EN = EYN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—RBAE -TT\F —RRAFE -TI\F
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETT BET T BETT
Trade creditors Z 5 EMIR 10,964 5,284 - =
Other creditors, deposits Hib IR - FA
and accruals meMBERER 56,387 44,727 1,213 1,445
Consideration payable for the step-up EHESEL 2 FE (B
acquisition of SEL (note 32) (BisE32) 95,047 21,479 95,047 21,479
162,398 71,490 96,260 22,924
The ageing analysis of trade creditors at the balance sheet date is as REER - B HRMNIRRZIRE D70
follows: T :
The Group
e
2009 2008
ZEBhEF —TENF
HK$°000 _HK$'000
BET T BT
0-60 days 0—60K 10,777 4,736
61-90 days 61—90K 50 216
Over 90 days 190 X 137 332
10,964 5,284
The carrying amounts of trade creditors are denominated in the HPEMIERZIREENTIERSE
following currencies: fiL :
The Group
Y
2009 2008
—BBhE -—TT)\&
HK$000 HK$’000
ik i BETT
Hong Kong dollar & ) 9,235 3,240
Other currencies Hih & 1,729 2,044
10,964 5,284

94

The carrying amounts of other creditors are denominated in the

Hi AR IREEN TN RE

following currencies: fi
The Group The Company
EN-S ENYNG
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENE —TT)N\F ZEBEENFE —TI)N\F
HK$°000 _HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETR BETT BETRT BETT
Hong Kong dollar B 120,565 7,026 95,333 21,558
US dollar e - 19,381 - -
Other currencies H b 5 62 1,110 - =
120,627 27,517 95,333 21,558

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&6 M Ok I B

CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS (continved) 26 FE{JIRS, » FARERIEREMn)
The carrying amounts of creditors, deposits and accruals ERRR  FARERTBIRERA ZIRE
approximate their fair values. BEEREAAERES -
AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING 27 BNRAERDARR
COMPANY
The amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest- ERREZERARIRKAEERR . &8
free and is repayable on demand. WA EREFEE o
The amount due to ultimate holding company is denominated in JE S B AR AR RS N BIMR R A B A BE T -
Hong Kong dollar. The carrying amount approximates its fair value. HIREEELDABMAE -
BANK BORROWINGS 28 RITER
The Group b
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BETTT
Bank borrowings ITE K 28,323 20,500
The bank borrowings are repayable RITERIR TS FHER :
as follows:
Within one year —F RN 6,207 2,000
More than one year but not —FEET
exceeding two years B iE MR 20,790 2,000
More than two years but not M E LA EB A
exceeding five years iyl 1,326 16,500
28,323 20,500
Less: Amount due within one year W R —F R E BN 7R
disclosed under current liabilities mENBEANRE ZBRX (6,207) (2,000)
22,116 18,500
Represented by: DR
Secured (note) B (FEE) 1,812 =
Unsecured 4 26,511 20,500
28,323 20,500
Note: B 5

The banking facilities were secured by leasehold land and building held by a subsidiary
with carrying amounts of HK$1,640,000 (note 17) and HK$2,160,000 (note 16).

The bank borrowings are unsecured and bear floating interest rate at an average effective
interest rate of 2.6% (2008: 4.7%) per annum.

The bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their fair values.

The exposure of the bank borrowings to interest-rate changes and the contractual
repricing dates are below six months.

BITEEN—HHNBARRAEZEEEABE
1,640,000 7T (i 5% 17) 2 T8 & 30 [ 78 #5 2,160,000 7T ( BT
FE16) ZIEFIEHEA -

WITERBEERRIRZBAENE - THERSF
BXE26%( =TT )\F : 47%) °

RITIRRIABE RELL
BITERZIREEEREZ ARBERE

RIOTERTEH AL ROFENEEDNHA
RANEART -

HLFBRRARAT g
—EENEER



WNOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATEL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&6 BB R M AR
29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 AR
Number
of shares HK$’000
R & E BETT
Authorised ordinary BROEE B
shares of HK$0.50 each 755 0.50 7T
At 1st April 2007 R-ZFFTLFMA—H 240,000,000 120,000
Increase during the year F R IE 110,000,000 55,000
At 31st March 2008 RZZBENER_ZFEFNEF
and 2009 =A=+—H 350,000,000 175,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary AR EE A 0.50 T2 TR
shares of HK$0.50 each R AR 2 AR
At Ist April 2007 R-ZZET+FMHA—H 190,155,871 95,078
Issue of shares BITRAD 25,384,146 12,692
At 31st March 2008 REFZFN\FER-_FTTNF
and 2009 =A=+—H 215,540,017 107,770
There was no movement in share capital during the year ended REzE— 2 = /L F= )E] =+—-BI#F
31st March 2009. The authorised share capital of the Company was fg ’ @ AW mEE BEZ E =
increased from HK$120,000,000 to HK$175,000,000 by the creation ZA=+—HLEFE ARF 5@ i 5
of an additional 110,000,000 new shares of HK$0.50 each during the 110,000,000 HX#HX@@ 7B 80,50 7T 2 ﬁﬁ
year ended 31st March 2008. These new authorised shares rank pari T C BIRERA BB “ﬁf}‘ 120,000,000 7C b
passu with the then existing shares. Z 7 ¥ 175,000,000 7T © 7% & A E KR H
HERRARMNEEH ﬂiﬂzu .

The Company issued 25,384,146 new shares to independent third
parties on 16th May 2007. The proceeds of the issue of shares before
expenses amounted to HK$93,922,000. The net proceeds of the issue
of shares amounted to HK$92,047,000 after deducting the expenses

of the issue.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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i /N

% = 77 % 1725,384, 146Hx I 1“ °
H&Tﬁ Fri8 ;I F 5 R
93,922,000 JT * M £ /Uz i =17
75 592,047,000 7T °
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&6 M Ok I B

The balance represented share premium attributable to a subsidiary at the time of
restructuring of the Group in 1989. Since this subsidiary was disposed of to the parent
company in 2007, the related capital reserve was transferred to retained profits.

30 RESERVES 30 f#fE
The Group NE
Retained
Capital  Exchange Asset  profits/
Share  Capital redemption fluctuation revaluation (Accumulated
premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses) Total
; BABE AERR REE( RERH/
RGEE EXRE i SDRE fifs (RER) 8E
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
AMTR BETn ARTn EMTR BMTn RETn ERTR
At Ist April 2007 R-ETLEMA-A 258680 18,060 4 649 - 1885 386,086
Exchange difference on translation of g hd il NGES
operations of overseas subsidiaries FEEZNES BER - - - 5,153 - - 5153
Exchange fluctuation reserve realised %ﬁ%%%@@&@ﬁ
upon disposal of subsidiaries ZW@%@#@%% - - - (7,253) = - (7,253)
Change in fair value of available- AHEE 2 REN
for-sale investments AREED - - - - 11,011 - 11,011
Total income recognised directly in equity BENBRRERLUAEE - - - 0 1101 - 8,911
Profit for the year REFRT - - - - - 26,017 26,017
Total recognised income and expenses for the year AEERRAMARFZ EF - - - (2,100) 11,011 26,017 34,928
Transfer to retained profits (note) EZRDEH () - (18,060) = = = 18,060 =
Dividends paid EkRE - - - - - (15087)  (15087)
[ssue of shares Bi1lkdn 81,230 - - - - - 81,230
Share issuance expenses BOROEY (1,875) - - - - - (1,875)
At 31st March 2008 RZEENF=A=1-H 338,035 - 4 439 1L011 BT 485282
Exchange difference on translation of HEBINIE D 7 X7
operations of overseas subsidiaries FEECIHNERBZES - - - (701) - - (701)
Change in fair value of available- AHEE 2 REN
for-sale investments NREEE - - - - (11,783) - (11,783)
Fair value adjustments upon step-up bl - UG Bt
acquisition of interest in an associate DMERE - - - - 908 - 908
Total expenses recognised directly in equity ERNMERTER BT 8T - - - (701)  (10,875) - (11,576)
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (158770)  (158,770)
Total recognised income and expenses for the year REEBBARNARF T £ - - - (701) (10,875  (158,770)  (170,346)
Dividends paid BRRE - - - - - (1744)  (17,44)
At 315t March 2009 A\ZEBAFZA=1-H 338,035 - 14 3,648 136 (44141) 297,692
Note: Bt 5

FHRAR—RMNBRANRNDEE  REAKER
—ANANFZER - AR UHBERRAER=_TT L

FHETHAR ARERANEARHCEEZRE

R o

HEZGERARAT
=TT FER
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30 RESERVES (continued)

31

30 fREw

The Company PN/ |
Capital
Share Contributed  redemption Retained
premium surplus reserve profits Total
EXEmE
ROEE BABR #E REEF k)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETr B¥Trz B¥Tx B¥%Tr  B%Tn
(nqte)
ikz3)
At 1st April 2007 RZZZLFMA—H 258,680 6,226 14 56,922 321,842
Profit for the year REEZ T - = = 67,241 67,241
Total recognised income and FEEDHERRAR
expenses for the year et - - - 67,241 67,241
Dividends paid ERRE - = = (15,087) (15,087)
Issue of shares BT 81,230 - - = 81,230
Share issuance expenses BITRHES (1,875) - - = (1,875)
At 31st March 2008 “EEN\F=ZA=1—H 338,035 6,226 14 109,076 453,351
Loss for the year AEEBHE - - - (80,907) (80,907)
Total recognised income and REREEZMAR
expenses for the year EEEaE - - - (80,907) (80,907)
Dividends paid BERBRE - - - (17,244) (17,244)
At 31st March 2009 RZBENF=A=+—H 338,035 6,226 14 10,925 355,200
Note: B 5

The balance represents the difference between the value of net assets of subsidiaries
acquired and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.
Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus of
the Company is available for distribution to shareholders.

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred tax relates to the same fiscal

authority.
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

G0 M R I A
31 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 31 IRIERIE ()
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows: FRERIBEERBEEEHWOT ¢
The Group NE
Accelerated Tax losses
tax and
depreciation =~ Trademarks others Total
\ BE
MEHRBFE e R H A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT BT BYTT
At st April 2007 RZET+FWA—H 3,076 18,900 (541) 21,435
Charged to income statement R R A 223 - 541 764
At 31st March 2008 RZTZEN\F=H=+—H 3,299 18,900 - 22,199
Step-up acquisition of interest EiE—HBE AR
in an associate (note 32) s (Pt 5 32) 1,358 1,706 - 3,064
Credited to income statement RUERA JEH‘ A (2,892) - - (2,892)
Effect on change in tax rate R ERNEFALZ
credited to income statement MEEFH & (190) (1,080) - (1,270)
At 31st March 2009 RZTEENEF=A=+—H 1,575 19,526 - 21,101
At the balance sheet date, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in NEEH H E/\\\ &K A TF A &K B
respect of unused tax losses and unrecognised deductible temporary ZHEZEWARE L 5K ) fR HEE & 5'5 ﬁﬁ
differences of HK$317,449,000 (2008: HK$296,874,000) due to the 8 A 0080 B B 1 2 B8 %6 317,449,000
— =
7

unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised (ZZEZEN fﬁ 7S 296 874,000 7T ) e
tax losses are losses of HK$40,611,000 (2008: HK$22,341,000) which BEEHARE - RERBABRT
will gradually expire by 2014. Other tax losses may be carried forward BIEAB 40,61 l,OOOﬁZ)ESTE (ZZETN\F:
indefinitely. B 22\,341 00070 ) RE KN T — M
o sR ER TR © Eﬁﬂﬁlﬁ}g‘ﬁ@ AR B S EE o
32 STEP-UP ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN AN 32 HE-EBREQFRZESR
ASSOCIATE
(a)  On 31st March 2009, the Group acquired the remaining 51% (@ RZETZAF=ZA=+—HB &K
of the issued share capital of its associated company, SEL from % £E F‘_J BYE=FS 1noch1na Pacific
Sinochina Pacific Limited, an independent third party. Upon Limited W & T Hﬁfi A AlSELER T
completion of the acquisition, SEL became a wholly-owned 51% 2 2% :I%$ o AU %Eﬁkfﬁ
subsidiary of the Group. SELIX BAEEE2E W
HK$’000
BE¥TT
Purchase consideration: WHEHE :
Cash consideration REKE 40,000
Cash consideration payable (note 26) ERTIR & {a 18 (P 5E 26) 95,047
Fair values of net assets acquired (as shown below) B ABEFEZAABEMITAR) (16,683)
118,364
Transfer from interests in associates EEBE AR 2w 53,179
Goodwill arising from the acquisition IWEEEA 22 171,543

HLFBRRABAT g
—EENEER
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GA M RER M
32 STEP-UP ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN AN 32
ASSOCIATE (continued)

100

(a) Details of the net assets acquired of the acquisition on 31st

March 2009 were as follows:

B —EHE AR 2@

Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair values amounts
Wk g S
ARE Z IR EE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T
Trademark (note 19) iz (B EE19) 10,337 -
Property, plant and M - BB &
equipment (note 16) 5 (P 7 16) 48,328 48,455
Prepaid lease payments (note 17) TE T & I8 (fi et 17) 1,640 916
Interests in associates (note 20) 73/\359‘ LAz (sE20) 1,079 1,079
Inventories FE 5,838 5,838
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEMIREN « 17 HiZ$ &ﬁ I FRIE 22,079 22,079
Amount due from an associate JiE Uk — R B & R RIIR 3K 311 311
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEEY 35,684 35,684
Account due to a shareholder J& 1<) A% BRIR 3R (14,733) (14,733)
Creditors, deposits and accruals JERIIRIR - FALE MTEIRE A (27,117) (27,117)
Dividend payable AR B (35,684) (35,684)
Current income tax liabilities & HAFT ? ST B E (2,164) (2,164)
Bank borrowings fE 171 2% (9,823) (9,823)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 31) BETIA B & (M 31) (3,064) (1,260)
32,711 23,581
Equity interest acquired i N & e 51%
Total fair values of net g ANBE )%TE d
assets acquired NRRIEV Gk 16,683
Purchase consideration LIRS M2
settled in cash WEERE (40,000)
Cash and cash equivalents EWENE R A2
in subsidiaries acquired He MIREEEBY 35,684
Net cash outflow from step-up KB 1% B — R QA
acquisition of interest Bwm 2B e
in an associate T E R (4,316)
(b) If the acquisition had occurred on 1st April 2008, consolidated b) WKEBR=_Z=ZNFWMA—ABHF
revenue and consolidated loss after tax of the Group for the B AEBEEBE_ZTTNF=H
year ended 31st March 2009 would have been HK$594,972,000 =t BUEFEZHGEAWREREGSE
and HK$147,083,000 respectively. Hi1& BB R Bl A8 594,972,0 0
T R 75 K 147,083,000 7T
33 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 33 i ij’f &g& & 7
7z

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is organised into two (2008:
three) divisions. These divisions are the basis on which the Group

reports its primary segment information.
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Revenue and results
Year ended 31st March 2009

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

A

33 EBRMEDE@
E Sk ()]

PEYET
BE-_STAF=A=t+—A

EBpEEHIIWT

Continuing operations

B 5 e I ot

IEFE

FREREER
Food and Investments
beverages in securities Total
E® EERE HEE
HK$’0(!) HK$’0(E) HK$’00_0
BMTT  BMTR  HETx
REVENUE Uk = 311,106 6,466 317,572
RESULTS £ S
Segment results before impairment HE /)ﬁ TE 18 Al
loss on goodwill M D EELS (23,033) (25,322) (48,355)
Impairment loss on goodwill S RI=N k! (118,700) - (118,700)
Segment results DEER (141,733) (25,322) (167,055)
Unallocated corporate expenses RAOBAFIHAL (8,428)
Unallocated corporate income RO EABRA 2,098
Share of results of associates BTGBt & A Bl 545 11,229 - 11,229
Finance income B 75 LA 1,247
Finance costs B & A (451)
Loss before taxation BrER Aﬁ &5 18 (161,360)
Income tax credit St % 2,590
Loss for the year KEEZEEIE (158,770)
Year ended 31st March 2008 BHE_ZZN\F=ZA=1+—HLTFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
EE
RELEED X
Computer and
information
Food and Investments communication
beverages in securities technology Total
o S H ;ﬁ Bl
B BHIE AR ek
RSO0 HKSO00  HKSO0 SO0
BETT BETT BETT BETIT
REVENUE W 5 —_220034 12408 35287 __ 346729
RESULTS E3
Segment results ECES 9,400 4,437 () 13,833
Unallocated corporate expenses APEARRAY (4,425)
Unallocated corporate income AAER Ej HS_Z ]\ ‘ 64
Gain on disposal of HE 3FT—ir BREXK
discontinued operations ) m \ 10,660
Share of results of associates IR NG 9,631 - - 9,631
Finance income EIE 3 ON 1,462
Finance costs =g (2,105)
Profit before taxation % Rm/ﬁ il 29,120
Income tax expenses FIiS#ES  (3,103)
Profit for the year RNEE G A 26,017
The Group had no inter-segment sales for the years ended 31st }z\\ HE_ZTZNFR_ == 7 % =A
March 2008 and 2009. =+ —ALFE AKRELEALSE
SHE °
HA7 B AR AR

=TT FER
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33 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Assets and liabilities

33 ¥EBRRMESE®

ES 5k (E )
BERERE

As at 31st March 2009 R-EEAF=ZRA=+—H
Continuing operations
FREREER
Food and Investments
beverages in securities Total
£ BEERA T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETF T BT T
ASSETS aE
Segment assets DA E 468,927 43,720 512,647
Interests in associates }Eﬁ TE RNl e 1,079 - 1,079
Amount due from an associate & Ug — FE B = A B 2 IR 3K 311 - 311
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEREEE 111,934
Total assets BEE 625,971
LIABILITIES =L
Segment liabilities DEARE 179,460 24 179,484
Unallocated corporate liabilities APOERAABE 41,025
Total liabilities wE & 220,509
As at 31st March 2008 RZZEENF=A=+—H
Continuing operations
HEQEES
Food and Investments
beverages in securities Total
B BHEE B
HES000  HKS000  HKS'000
BT T BT T BT T
ASSETS 93
Segment assets DR E 331,309 301,012 632,321
Interests in associates FIT 4k Bt & /D\ Bl B 77,963 - 77,963
Amount due from an associate }Wéz F'EJ b N A 2 REX 4,100 - 4,100
Unallocated corporate assets ROBRAREE 2,487
Total assets BEE 716,871
LIABILITIES =L
Segment liabilities DEAEE 56,006 19,905 75,911
Amounts due to associates FE B 2 N B 2 R X 2,616 - 2,616
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBERAFAE 45,292
Total liabilities waE 123,819
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

Business segments (continued)

33 ¥EBRRMESE®
EXDE(E)

HipEp
BE-_ZEZNE=A=+—HLEE

Other information
Year ended 31st March 2009

Continuing operations

BFEEEXK
Food and Investments
beverages in securities Total
B2 "ERE i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT B¥TT
Capital expenditures BARRAX 192,783 - 192,783
Depreciation e 22,096 - 22,096
Impairment loss on AfEEZRED
available-for-sale investments B E 18 - 4,222 4,222
Impairment loss on property, M= - BELRFREZ
plant and equipment BB 18 15,529 - 15,529
Impairment loss on goodwill B2 2 REEE 118,700 - 118,700
Net loss on disposal of property, LEMZE  BE &
plant and equipment R )gﬁ Tg 5 709 - 709
Provision for inventories to ERETFE = E
net realisable value ] &35 5 2R 856 - 856
Decrease in fair value of an TEMHE 2
investment property N EmRD 3,100 — 3,100
Year ended 31st March 2008 BHE_ZZENF=A=+—HILLFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
B
ﬁr inm g«< Al % f& g«< A % i&(
Computer and
information
Food and Investments communication
beverages in securities technology Total
BRNER
8K BHRE BB ok
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BT
Capital expenditures BEARRT 36,402 - - 36,402
Depreciation ne 21,987 = 378 22,365
Impairment loss on AHEEE ZREN
available-for-sale investments REEE - 835 - 835
Impairment loss on property, ME BEREEZ
plant and equipment REER 3,356 - - 3,356
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERSREZ
plant and equipment BRFE 3,600 - - 3,600
Write back of provision for inventories BROCERRBEER
to net realisable value A 438 5 - - (2,413) (2,413)
Provision for impairment of receivables J_E WOIRT 2 B R & = - 121 121
Write off of other receivables H A JE R IR 502 8 178 - - 178
Increase in fair value of an 54 éf mEZ
investment property AELE M (2,000) - — (2,000)
HEZHERAERAR
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33 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) 33 EEREDE®
Geographical segments WEDE
The Group’s operations in food and beverages business are REBKE 2 BHREBRBS - FIE
carried out in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland China LB AMEE: ERERE2EMR
whereas its discontinued operations in computer and information BAEABBRERNES  REAMK
communication technology business were carried out in Hong ZEEE BRREEENREBEE-
Kong, Mainland China and Thailand. The trading of investments in NTAASEZMEMISE D 2 Wm 2
securities are carried out in Hong Kong. The following is an analysis DA
of the Group’s revenue by geographical market:
Revenue by geographical market
Bt EmiSE D 2 W
2009 2008
—2ENE —2B)\F
HK$°000 % HK$’000 %
BET T B BETT B X
Hong Kong 20 291,716 92 310,039 89
Singapore pnig 16,664 5 24,723 7
Mainland China PER 9,192 3 9,741 3
Thailand = - - 2,226 1
317,372 __100 WL E
The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of segment assets NTAREEEFREMREI D 2D EEE
and capital expenditures analysed by geographical area in which the REEREARRAZ Z DT :

assets are located:

Carrying amounts of

segment assets Capital expenditures

PHEEERAE BEAREX
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF —ZZTTN\F ZBZERGF ZZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BETIT BETT BETIT
Hong Kong BB 502,042 602,052 189,705 30,046
Singapore EImIIEd 8,134 11,208 1,779 924
Mainland China el ASp i 2,471 19,061 1,299 5,432
512,647 632,321 192,783 36,402

34 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 34 EENSRTHRAEZME
MANAGEMENT

Directors’ emoluments

Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors of the Company are

Expe
XNEENARREEZMESMT

as follows:
2009
—2ThF
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits contribution Total
2R BIRER
EEWSE H A @F s8It W
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BT T BT T
Executive Directors: HITES
Lily Chow EEIE] - 1,212 91 1,303
Chang Wan Lung, Robert RERE - 1,432 12 1,444
Independent BYFHTES
Non-Executive Directors:
Shinichi Yonehara KIFE— 120 - - 120
Wu King Cheong PR & 120 - - 120
Leung Kwong Kin (note a) 252 (MieEa) 120 - - 120
Lau Kai Shu, Frank (note a) 254 (KtsEa) 120 - - 120
480 2,644 103 3,227
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34 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 34 EERERTRAEZME @
MANAGEMENT (continued)
Directors’ emoluments (continued) EEMe(®)
2008
—ET)\F
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits  contribution Total
\ gk RER
Exwme HtEAN  FEHX k]
JHKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000
BT EETT BT BT
Executive Directors: HITES :
Lily Chow IEEIE = 1,212 91 1,303
Chang Wan Lung, Robert REBE - 1,382 10 1,392
Independent BYFHITES !
Non-Executive Directors:
Shinichi Yonehara AKRE— 120 - - 120
Wu King Cheong i EET= I 120 - - 120
Kwong Man Sing (note b) BB 2 (FFaED) 120 - - 120
360 _ 2094 ____ 101 __ 3,05
Notes: MEsE -
(a) Appointed on 1st April 2008. (a) R-ZEZNFEWA —HEZRT-
(b) Resigned on 31st March 2008. (b) R=ZEZNF=ZA=+—HEE-
Dr Chow Yei Ching, Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr Kuok Hoi Sang BMEE L FMEESESE  BEBETE
and Mr Ho Sai Hou, did not receive directors’ emoluments from the Rtttk d  WEEAAQ R RENRB
Company (2008: Nil) and its subsidiaries. AAIWBREENE (ZTZENF &) -
These Directors are also directors of CIHL, the ultimate holding AR ZEEFHRRLL i?i /NS
company, and are paid by CTHL in respect of services provided to the BRrES HTRBEIApERE LT
CIHL group as a whole, including the Company and its subsidiaries. BREEREE(R %ZF NaEl Rk EHEAE)
B 2 PR 7% A 18 35 ST AT SR M o
Employees’ emoluments B8 ﬁﬁ’”
The five highest paid individuals included two (2008: two) directors, & = 5 0 % AEBEMAB(ZZET AN
details of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments paid F MB)ESF BELIMESHBECH
to the remaining three (2008: three) highest paid individuals for both FE0 koo R Z W F JEA_§Z+7L THT =%
years are as follows: (Z2ENF: ZR)RaFATzZHeR:
2009 2008
—EBNF —ZTENF
HK$°000 _HK$°000
BT T BT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind E e =1 E N E i 18 A 2,524 3,225
Performance-based bonus ?fi RIBEWZIEA 175 584
Contribution to retirement schemes RIKE ZHR 30 33
2,729 3,842
The emoluments of the remaining three (2008: three) highest paid ER=R(ZZTZTN\F: =R)KaFHA
individuals fall within the following bands: TARSEE S A THEE :
2009 2008
ZZZhF —ZTENF
Nil-HK$1,000,000 4 — 7% 1,000,000 7'E - 2 2
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 78 # 1,000,001 7T — % # 1,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 75 £ 2,000,001 7T — 7% # 2,500,000 7T - 1
3 3
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35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35 HAEE
At the balance sheet date, the Company had contingent liabilities REER  ARBERARAIZEEN
in respect of guarantees issued for banking facilities of up to BARERTHRITHREREERMAE X
HK$29,680,000 (2008: HK$20,987,000) granted to wholly-owned % 75 #29,680,000 L ( T N\ F : B
subsidiaries of the Company. 20,987,000 7T ) Z A B (E o
36 CAPITAL COMMITMENT 36 BARKEE
2009 2008
—EENF —ET)N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
ik i Y BETT
Capital commitment for 5 Mk 2
plant and equipment B R
— Contracted but not provided for —BEAERFTIE 613 -
37 OPERATING LEASES 37 EXMHEE
The Group as lessee AEBEREABEA

106

The Group had commitment for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of
premises which fall due as follows:

AEEREFHERBIAME 2
MREMANARLN 2 RERESE
BLOERAMT :

2009 2008

“EENF —ZT)N\F

HK$’000 HK$°000

BET T BB T T

Within one year R—FRX 102,438 82,085
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ERAFNA 95,251 97,950
Over five years AFENE 4,834 3,991
202,523 184,026

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rental
payable (contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined
generally by applying pre-determined percentages to future sales
less the basic rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible to
determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s coffee machines were rented
out under operating leases. They were leased out for periods ranging
from two to three years. The future minimum lease payments

J:zﬁfﬂ%f:%ﬂ*@@%%zlﬁﬁ@%@% :
TERERIMENEE (IR

LRI EZ% A
%Zfﬁ?&ﬁ /@Z%TH‘E\ZEZIKT

EI KEIWJWE%LAM%’IEEE
EHH E-F -RETARMEL
% RS - REBE R T 5 HE AT YER

receivable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases for Z BRERHFEHEEFRENT :
each of the following periods are as follows:

2009 2008
—EERAF —ZEENF
HK$°000 _HK$000
BETT BETT
Within one year —F A 699 327
In the second to fifth year inclusive —ERFEA 783 369
1,482 696

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by
the shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 20th September
2002 for the primary purpose of providing full-time employee,
directors, part time employees with weekly work hours of 15 hours
or above and advisors and consultants to the Company or any
subsidiary with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Scheme will expire
on 19th September 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”)
or, if such 10% limit is renewed, at the date of shareholders’ approval
of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum
aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes, must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from
time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without prior
approval from the Company’s and CIHL’s shareholders. Each grant
of options to any director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
must be approved by independent non-executive directors of the
Company and CIHL. Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director or any of
their respective associates would result in the shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted and
to be granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital
and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period
up to the date of such grant must be approved in advance by the
Company‘s and CIHL’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during the effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the Board
of Directors which shall not be later than 10 years from the date
of grant. The exercise price is determined by the Directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the highest of the closing price
of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average closing
price of the share on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted would be
17,135,587 shares. No options have been granted or exercised under
the Scheme during the year (2008: Nil) and none are outstanding at
31st March 20009.
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39 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for
the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas. In Hong Kong,
the Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme
prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a
choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after 1st
December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of the
relevant payroll costs at a maximum of HK$1,000 per employee per
month to the Scheme. The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly
contributions from both employees and the Group at rates ranging
from 5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the
length of service with the Group.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China contribute 4% to
30% of the basic salaries of their employees to retirement schemes
operated by municipal governments. Under the schemes, the
employees also contribute 2% to 11% of their basic salaries.

The Group’s subsidiary in the Singapore contributes 5% to 14.5% of
the basic salaries of their employees to retirement schemes operated
by central government. Under the schemes, the employees also
contribute 5% to 20% of their basic salaries.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. At 31st
March 2009, the total amount of forfeited contributions, which arose
upon employees leaving the ORSO Scheme and which are available
to reduce the contributions payable in future years, was nil (2008:
Nil). The amount of forfeited contributions utilised in this manner
during the year was nil (2008: HK$60,000). At 31st March 2009,
contributions of HK$8,000 (2008: HK$8,000) due in respect of the
reporting period were paid over to the ORSO Scheme in April 2009.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40

Details of the material transactions entered into during the year with
related parties are as follows:

(a) Transactions/balances with related parties

2
N BEEBEALIILZERR B

i ant
=
7 e i
p
-
a\g
M

@ BREBEALZXRS &t

— The Group — &
2009 2008
—EENF —EENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
Transactions with related parties HR5 A L A2
Purchase of inventories B —EEEAQ j
from an associate B Eﬁff 29,174 11,564
Purchase of property, plant and B—HARRHEA A
equipment from BEME -
a fellow subsidiary = K& - 584
Management fee paid to m—ERZRME QR
a fellow subsidiary (note) SE f% 5 (B5E) 800 800
Rental income from an associate g—H H@‘ e N A Z S RA 456 342
Interest income on amount JE Y — FET B & R RIIR 3R 2
due from an associate A B U A 229 165
Balances with related parties HEARE AN L2 &8
Amount due from an associate JE s — [T B 2 1 B iR 5K 311 4,100
Amount due to ultimate JE 1 B A4 iR
holding company UNEILE =N (230) (1,783)
Amounts due to associates JE -] B = B IR 3K - (2,616)
The remuneration of the Directors and other members of key \\j RKEEAR & §$ NEBEHMEE
management during the year were disclosed in note 34. BREZMEE R T34 HKEE -
Note: B =

Management fee paid in respect of the management agreement entered into with
CIHL Group.

(b) Transactions/balances with related parties

SNERERAEHEETEREERTNEER
Bt e o

(b) HEEBEALTZRS #tk

— The Company . YN
2009 2008
—EBRE —TIF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET BT
Transactions with related parties EAMEATZR
Management fee charged B B /& A =) Z
to subsidiaries ERE 1,823 4,301
Balances with related parties EAE B A+ 2 BB ER
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B8 A B IR X 421,701 568,288
Amount due from an associate JE Ug — il B = 1 B IR 3R - 4,100
Amount due to ultimate FES B AR 12 iR
holding company NG 'FE Y (201) (955)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS BT B A B IR X (8,369) (2,291)
HZ R AER AR

=TT FER



WOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G5B B ORI B

41 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 41 #HFERERBRMET
STATEMENT
Cash generated from operations REEEZRSE
2009 2008
—BRAE —TT)\H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
(Loss)/profit before taxation e BiAT (E18),/ % (161,360) 18,460
Adjustments for: P
Share of results of associates ikl NG E ¥ (11,229) (9,631)
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFRF 2 WA (1,247) (1,462)
Interest income on amount FE Yr— FE1 B & R RIIR 3R 2
due from an associate B U A (229) (165)
Interest income on deposits FHize REMNKIEZ
and prepayments FE YA (1,869) -
Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts  #R7T {8 5 & iE X 2 F S < 451 2,105
Depreciation e 22,096 22,365
Provision for impairment of receivables & W R O (EL B8 - 121
Write off of other receivables H b & U IR SR 8H - 178
Net loss on disposal of property, HEMZE - BE R
plant and equipment R B F AR 709 3,600
Provision for/(write back of provision for) — #{,/ (% Bl # &)
inventories to net realisable value GEER &R F5E 856 (2,413)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZRERER 118,700 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHfHEZREDN
investments VERIEN Sk 4,222 835
Impairment loss on property, W - BB REE 2
plant and equipment VERIEN Sk 15,529 3,356
Unrealised gain on derivative PTEMBTIAZ
financial instruments R W= - (279)
Loss on investments at fair value REEEEAREREZ
through profit or loss HEREE 27,676 6,075
Decrease/(increase) in fair value "EMEZ ARE
of an investment property S (1) 3,100 (2,000)
Reversal of accruals and other payables B ORI B A K& H At AT 1R 3K - (1,860)
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEPR
in working capital KEBSRE 17,405 39,285
Changes in working capital EEEeH
Decrease in inventories FERL 1,870 2,455
Decrease in debtors, deposits EINIRSR - IFHRE &
and prepayments TR AT FRIE R 5,490 5,598
Decrease in investments at fair RERIREARBEREZ
value through profit or loss B e 47,701 9,186
Increase in amounts due from MENTRRERTFP KR
customers for contract work FKIEIE AN - (48)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors, IR - FAKRE R
deposits and accruals TEIREACRD), 10 (39,301) 32,925
Increase in deferred income PR FE U AL 0 2,488 1,586
Decrease in amount due to E R AR 2
ultimate holding company R FOR (1,553) (321)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts FEAS Bt & A A Z IR 3R
due to associates CRi),/#8hn (2,616) 2,616
31,484 93,282
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

42 FEHRBRQF

Place or Effective percentage
country of Issued and of issued share
incorporation paid up share capital/registered
or capital/ capital held by the
registration/ Class of registered  Number of Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
ARARA
5 ] BRARAY,
i/ ERbE ‘ ERTRAR ELES
Ak FEXR ROER Rx/ERRE RGEE E& B IEXH
% %
RS RS
Capital World (H.K) Limited  Hong Kong Ordmary  HK$5,000 5,000 - 100 Restaurant and bar
E% (BB 5RO B tE REs0E EEREE
Champ Success Hong Kong Ordmary HKS$2 2 - 100 Restaurant
(Hong Kong) L1m1ted BB iF: BELT £B
RE(ZE)ARAF
Chevalier (Biotech) Limited Hong Kong Ordlnary ”HK$2 2 - 100 In‘{estment holding
TN BRRE &R i AT RERK
Cheval/ier Pacific Limited Hong Kong Ordinary ”HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 = 100 Investment holding and trading
EtREBRAR 0 L& B%200,000,000 7T of food and beverages
REARREKESD
Chevalier Pacific Catering Mainland China Not US$434,000 Not - 100 Operation of coffee shops
Management (Beijing) B A applicable 434000%7T  applicable LM
@mmqhmwﬂmm ISR A
AATIERER
(ER)ERAR (W)
CL Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordlnary _ HK$200,000 200,000 - 100 Investment holding
Eo @ A%K2000007T REER
Eastech Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 'HK$6,080,832 6,080,832 - 100 Restaurant and bar
REARAF R BR B¥o080832TT EEREE
Giant Dragon Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$10,000 10,000 - 100 Restaurant
(Hong Kong) Limited B i 75 10,0007 £E
HE(EE)ARAA
Giant Ocean (H.X.) Limited Hong Kong Ordmary _ HK$176 176 - 100 Restaurant and bar
RBF(ER)ARAHA B ! BB16T EEREE
Grand Concept Hong Kong Ordmary HK$2 2 - 100 Restaurant and bar
(Hong Kong) Limited BE L BT ZERAE
BR(EE)ARAF
Igor’s Group Hong Kong Ordmary HK$2 2 - 100 Restaurant
Management Limited &k L BB 2B
RAREERARAA
Info Dragon Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 100 Trading of food and beverages
EAARAT R BB BE000T £HED
Marson Consultants Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary _ HKS10 10 - 100 Restaurant and bar
REERERAF &k i AT EERER

**Thii #
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42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42 ETEMEBQF @
Place or Effective percentage
country of Issued and of issued share
incorporation paid up share capital/registered
or capital/ capital held by the
registration/ Class of registered  Number of Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly ~ Indirectly Principal activities
KLTRE
] ERARA
it/ ExEH ERTRAR AR A gL }
NAER FEXR ROEN RE/ERRE  RHHA E& g IERH
% %
AR BAZ
New Global (HX ) lelted Hong Kong Ordmary _ HKS10,000 10,000 - 100 Restaurant and bar
(B8 BRA B LE  E%i00007 EERER
Orient Talent Hong Kong Ordmary HK$2 2 - 100 Restaurant and bar
_ (Hong Kong) Limited ) L BEIT ZERAR
E71(F8)ARAT
Pacific Coffee Hong Kong Ordmary HK$77,355 77,355 - 100 Trading of coffee products,
Company Limited 0 3l 77,3550 operation of coffee shops
and provision of maintenance
services
WEERE S EEWER
R EERER
Pacific Coffee Company Singapore Ordmary $8100,000 100,000 - 100 Operation of coffee shops
() Pte Ltd R LH 1000005 MK BEWEE
Pacific Coffee British Virgin Ordinary US$40,034 400,337 - 100 Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited Islands 40,034 F T REER
RERAES i
PCC Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordmary HK$2 2 - 100 Operation of coffee shops
&R Tl AT gamE
PCC Investment (IT) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordmary _ HK$2 2 - 100 Operation of coffee shops
&k i BT B EmeE s
Pacific York (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary _ HK$2 2 - 100 Restaurant and bar
BH(EFE)ERAT &k i BT EERER
Sharp Rise Limited British Virgin Ordmary USS$1.00 1 100 - Investment holding in
MABRAR Islands g e operations of coffee shops
ABRAES REBRNIEEEE
Sinochina Enterprises Limited ~ British Virgin Ordmary US$100 100 100 - Investment holding in
Islands L 10037T operations of restaurants
EBRLEHS and bars \
REBRREERALZE
Success Well (H.K. ) lelted Hong Kong Ordmary _ HKS$10,000 10,000 - 100 Restaurant and bar
A (EE)BR R R B0 ZERER
Super Target Hong Kong Ordmary HK$100 100 - 100 Restaurant and bar
(Hong Kong) Limited BE L@ BE1007T ZERAE
ER(FR)ERAT
AETERER(LE) Mainland China Not US$140,000 Not = 100 Operation of coffee shops
BB 2] (note) HE A applicable 1400007 applicable LM
FEH FEH
Note: B 5
Established in Mainland China as wholly foreign owned enterprises. PANE 2B B N HFL ST o
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FSC

Mixed Sources
Product group from well-managed
forests and other controlled sources
www.fsc.org Cert no. BV-COC-936401
© 1996 Forest Stewardship Council
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